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 P R O C E E D I N G S 

 12:30 p.m. 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Good afternoon 

and welcome.  This is the National Capital 

Planning Commission's December 2nd, 2010 

meeting.  Would you all stand and please join 

me in the Pledge of Allegiance? 

  [PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE.] 

ITEM 1 - REPORT OF THE CHAIRMAN 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Thank you.  We 

do have a quorum, and if there's no objection, 

we will proceed according to the agenda that 

has been public noticed and has been sent to 

Commission members. 

[INSERT - AGENDA] 
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  Agenda Item No. 1 is the Report of 

the Chairman, and I have just two things to 

note.  One is -- am I in the wrong seat?  Oh. 

 Am I in the right seat?  I'm not in the right 

seat?  I go where the gavel is.  Oh, I see.   

  We'll just stay right here, yes.  

I was going to say the chair to my left was 

empty, and then I looked up and there was Rob. 

  (Laughter.) 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Mr. Ames, who 

normally sits to my left, you'll notice is not 

here today.  Herbert is a fellow Presidential 

appointee, so I did want to note his absence. 

 He is actually on the west coast on business. 

 Actually, he's in Las Vegas, and the Lord 

only knows what he's doing, but he's supposed 

to be out there on business. 

  Presumably, this would be his last 

meeting, so he was sorry to miss it.  I did, 

we did talk yesterday.  He's been on this 

committee as a commissioner for a good while. 

 He's a large personality, and he was fairly 
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passionate about the Commission and its work, 

and I think we all agree to that. 

  He frequently or a number of 

times, he had told me that his service here 

was the single most enjoyable thing he has 

ever done, and I think those of us who serve 

here can certainly identify with that 

sentiment.  So I did want to note Mr. Ames, 

not his passing, but his absence.   

  Second, and the final item on the 

Report of the Chairman is that I note that 

NCPC is working closely with the Department of 

Commerce and other federal agencies and within 

the Department of Commerce, specifically with 

the economic development Administration, on 

something called Regional Innovation Clusters. 

  We're working, they've really 

asked us to help them coordinate a handful of 

other federal agencies that are looking at 

regional innovation clusters, usually 

principally the St. Elizabeth's development 

project, the Department of Homeland Security, 
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and the economic development spinoff in other 

positive infrastructure and community 

improvements that it will spark. 

  Among those agencies we're working 

with obviously are the EDA; the White House is 

very much involved with that project.  So the 

White House in the Urban Affairs Office; the 

District of Columbia obviously; Maryland and 

Virginia Economic Development officials; GSA; 

HUD and I may have missed someone.  Julia 

Koster on staff here is the principal go-to 

person from the staff, working with EDA to 

help in those coordination activities. 

  A few weeks ago Julia and I met 

with Assistant Secretary of Commerce John 

Fernandez.  He heads the Economic Development 

Administration. 

  We had a very good meeting, and 

they are looking very forward to working with 

this Commission, and they're going to be 

relying on us and staff to help them develop 

the concept and then put "oomph" to Regional 
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Innovation Clusters, and how major projects, 

just like what's going at DHS and St. 

Elizabeth's, can have very good, positive 

economic development impacts. 

  So that's the final report of the 

Chairman.  Questions? 

  MR. DIXON:  Mr. Chairman? 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Yes sir. 

  MR. DIXON:  I would like to 

comment on that.  First of all, we all know 

how significant the St. Elizabeth's effort is 

going to be and Homeland Security effort, and 

obviously there is a local parochial concern 

that we get in play, in terms of employment 

and opportunities.  

  I would suggest that maybe the 

staff look closely at, since this is a federal 

body and there's some regional possibilities 

here, that there be focus on Small Business 

Administration and on hub zones, and there are 

two or three programs which have some focus, 

8(a) programs and hub zones. 
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  But I'm particularly interested, 

somewhat self-servingly, but particularly 

interested in hub zone companies, because hub 

zone companies, as most of you probably know, 

have to be present in a community that is 

impacted, which could be in D.C. or Virginia 

or Maryland, or wherever. 

  But they also have to employ 35 

percent of their people from areas that are 

impacted.  It could be in Maryland, Virginia 

or D.C.  But otherwise, if we don't try to 

incorporate some of those companies in some of 

these efforts, then there is maybe a short-

term employment opportunity.   

  But long-term business growth and 

small business is the fundamental force in our 

country, I think.  Whatever party you're in, 

we understand that.  This is the way to do 

that and affect communities that are really 

needy and people who really need to have the 

job opportunities. 

  So I hope that the staff may 
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figure that in when they move forward, as a 

way to reach out and get people involved, 

particularly from my community, Anacostia, 

east of the river, but broadly in the region. 

 Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Very good.  

Thank you, Mr. Dixon.  You're right on point. 

 If you notice the paper, Mayor-Elect Gray 

yesterday had a meeting with the President, 

and they talked specifically about how the 

federal government can help in economic 

development for the city, and they spoke 

specifically of the St. Elizabeth's project.  

  So there was an article in the 

paper today and there was also an editorial in 

today's Washington Post on that.  So your 

comments are right on point, Mr. Dixon. 

  MR. DIXON:  Mr. Chairman, I want 

to just add, for those who may not know, the 

two programs which assist small disadvantaged 

communities, 8(a) and hub zone, the 8(a) 

program can be owned by a person in Potomac 
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with a million dollar, billion dollar home.  

At least they can live in that house.   

  Whereas the hub zone requires you 

to be committed and in your community.  

There's also a major review being put in place 

to review hub zones.  There were like 8,000 

about four months ago; now I think they're 

down to 3,000 because when they put 

requirements on the table to be responded to 

automatically by computer, it knocked out a 

lot of folks, a lot of companies that were not 

really meeting those requirements.  

  Also, there is another second tier 

of filing requirements that are very 

exhaustive, and will basically narrow that 

group down more, which means that if you're in 

this program, you're going to have to be 

pretty serious and pretty committed to what 

the program is about, and also will be a way 

to encourage others to get in who are 

meaningfully structured. 

  Now this is very specific, I know. 
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 But you've got to laser in on this if we're 

going to make it work.  The sooner you laser 

in, the sooner it will be felt in a broad way. 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Thank you very 

much, Mr. Dixon.  All good comments.  Any 

other questions? 

  (No response.) 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Hearing none, 

that ends the Report of the Chairman, and 

agenda item No. 2 is Report of the Executive 

Director, Mr. Acosta. 

ITEM 2 - REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

  MR. ACOSTA:  Thank you, Mr. 

Chairman.  I just have two items that I'd like 

to report to the Commission today.  First of 

all, with respect to our NCPC Speaker Series, 

we will conclude our speaker series this year 

with an exploration of temporary art and 

commemorative installation in the public 

realm. 

  This event, which is co-sponsored 

by NCPC, the Smithsonian American Art Museum, 
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the British Council and the Trust for the 

National Mall, will take place on December 8th 

at 6:30 p.m. at the Smithsonian American Art 

Museum, McEvoy Auditorium.  We hope to see you 

there. 

  Second, we are also going to have 

a second public hearing on the draft 

Environmental Impact Study for the National 

Museum of African-American History and 

Culture.  This second hearing will be held on 

Thursday, January 6th, from 5:30 to 7:30 p.m. 

right here at NCPC's Commission chambers.  So 

for members of the public who are interested 

in attending that, please do come. 

  Also, you can provide a review of 

the documents, and you'll find that on our 

website.  You'll also find a written report at 

your desks, and that concludes my presentation 

for today. 

[INSERT - EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S REPORT] 
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  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Thank you, Mr. 

Acosta.  Questions or comments on the 

Executive Director's Report?  Mr. Miller? 

  MR. MILLER:  I just wanted to 

report to the Commission and to the executive 

director that the D.C. Council did take final 

action on the comprehensive, the District 

elements, amendments to the District elements 

of the Comprehensive Plan, and they will be 

submitted shortly to the Commission for its 

formal review, along with an environmental 

assessment prepared by the Office of Planning. 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Thank you.  

Other questions or comments? 

  (No response.) 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Hearing none, 

Agenda Item No. 3 is the Legislative Update 

and General Ann Schuyler. 

ITEM 3 - LEGISLATIVE UPDATE 

  MS. SCHUYLER:  Congress was very 

quiet.  I have nothing to report.   

ITEM 4 - CONSENT CALENDAR 
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  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Terrific.  

Agenda Item No. 4 is the Consent Calendar.  

There is one item on the Consent Calendar, and 

it is the replacement of Gate 5, the 

modification of internal roadways at the 

National Naval Medical Center.  

  There's obviously background 

material that you've received on the Gate 5 

project.  Are there questions or comments on 

that, the consent item? 

  (No response.) 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Hearing none, 

all in favor or is there a motion to approve 

the Consent Calendar? 

  VOICE:  So moved. 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  And there's a 

second?   

  VOICE:  Second. 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Is there a 

second? 

  VOICE:  There's a second. 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  There is a 
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second.  All in favor of the Consent Calendar, 

the one item, say aye? 

  (Chorus of ayes.) 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Opposed no. 

  VOICE:  No. 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  It's approved.   

[INSERT - NATIONAL NAVAL MEDICAL CENTER] 
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ACTION ITEMS 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Moving to the 

action items, Agenda Item No. 5 is the 

National Mall Plan.  This is obviously a very 

significant item on today's agenda.  We have 

from NCPC staff Nancy Witherall. 

ITEM 5A - EDR FOR NATIONAL MALL 

  MS. WITHERELL:  Good afternoon.  

The Park Service is presenting today the final 

master plan, Mall Plan that it has been 

working on publicly for four years, and has 

anticipated, been anticipating for longer than 

that. 

  The Commission will recall that 

you saw and commented on the draft plan at 

your March meeting, and the Park Service has 

now concluded its environmental impact 

statement, and has updated the plan with 

further information, particularly updating 

some environmental information that EPS APA 

requested from the draft, and it has now 

completed its environmental and historic 
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preservation work, and is now submitting a 

final plan for your review and approval. 

  The Mall is a magnificent 

landscape and is beloved by many people around 

the world, as well as in this country.  It 

will always be beautiful.  But as we know, it 

does show some wear, and particularly when 

we're at ground level, and particularly in 

certain seasons. 

  The Park Service is charge with 

being the steward of this place, but also 

managing many activities at a very high level 

of intensity on this landscape, which the Park 

Service believes is the most intensively used 

landscape in the world.   

  It's not been able to find another 

example where so many people come to this 

place, and particularly since most of it is 

softscape, not hardscape.  Here's a photo that 

indicates the kind of wear and tear that can 

occur on the Mall, especially in the summer 

months when there have been long use of 
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temporary structures in particular on the 

center panel at the Mall. 

  So the Park Service, following a 

Congressional hearing in 2005, but also as a 

culmination of many years of concern on the 

part of many people for the condition of the 

Mall, and funding for the Mall, introduced in 

the fall of 2006 the beginning of planning for 

the National Mall, which now we see in this 

document. 

  The major goals for the plan are 

stewardship of the Mall, as the nation's 

preeminent civic landscape, conservation of 

its natural and cultural resources, developing 

the Mall, thinking of it as an urban park, 

which it is, and implementing measures so that 

it can be developed and managed to be 

sustainable. 

  Other goals include making 

improvements to infrastructure, infrastructure 

of all types, circulation, transportation, 

infrastructure for visitors, for First 
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Amendment events, such as we see at the 

Capitol Reflecting Pool in the upper left 

corner, for just average tourists, people who 

use the Mall for recreation. 

  Current conditions include a lack 

of utilities that allow for easy hookups for 

events.  So that's why we see temporary 

generators on the Mall, and there are also 

various choke points or other circulation 

problems, and one particular choke point is on 

the Kutz Bridge.  As you're all very familiar 

with that very narrow sidewalk there as it 

crosses the Tidal Basin. 

  Also the Mall is not now 

universally accessible, although the Park 

Service has certainly been making strides on 

that in recent decades, but more needs to be 

done.   

  It's very important to the Park 

Service that the Mall be as welcoming as 

possible and for all visitors, and so they're 

planning to have additional and improved 
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facilities for food and restrooms in 

particular, information, comfort, being able 

to get out of the hot sun when necessary. 

  It's very important that those 

amenities be well-dispersed, and that's what 

you see in this plan.  It's also important to 

improve pedestrian safety and to provide 

access to and around the Mall for bicycles for 

circulation.  So the proposal calls for 

separating pedestrian and bicycle paths. 

  The Mall is also seen by many 

people as a place to play, and it's very 

important to improve the quality of the 

athletic fields and to make them more durable, 

so therefore they can be used more frequently. 

  Then most fundamentally, it's 

important that the National Mall be integrated 

within the monumental core itself, and in the 

life of the city, through improved wayfinding, 

access, circulation and transit. 

  This is the area of the National 

Mall Plan, and it's sort of shown in green and 
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highlighted with this order.  You'll note that 

that includes land managed by the Park Service 

and also includes land that is not managed by 

the Park Service, notably the -- particularly, 

but not exclusively, the Smithsonian museums, 

the National Gallery of Art and the Department 

of Agriculture. 

  The Park Service has been working 

very closely with all of these related 

agencies and many others, including OAS and 

the Federal Reserve, Holocaust Museum and so 

forth, all in this broad area, in the 

development of this plan over four years, and 

certainly continues, intends to continue to do 

so as the plan is implemented. 

  And as you know, we're in a 

fortuitous moment where various agencies are 

planning, including planning together, and 

this includes primarily the commissions and 

the Commission of Fine Art's framework plan, 

which indeed continues our legacy of planning 

throughout the history of this Commission in 
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the monumental core, most memorably, perhaps, 

with our legacy plan of 1997.  This is another 

implementation of that. 

  So from the very beginning, this 

Commission envisions that our framework plan 

will work very closely with the Mall plans, so 

that we can be planning for the entire 

monumental core. 

  In addition, as you know, the 

District of Columbia has concluded its Center 

City action agenda and is beginning to 

implement that, and the Architect of the 

Capitol is still continuing to work on its 

master plan, which is still in draft, and is 

not released to the public, as it was last 

spring. 

  This diagram is meant to show 

opportunities for how the boundaries of the 

Mall can be more porous, and how activities 

that are on the Mall can be placed within the 

larger context of the monumental core, 

particularly to areas that are more 
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sustainable, areas that have hardscape, areas 

that have amenities, areas that have 

utilities. 

  So that the kind of functions that 

the American public really demands for the 

Mall can be shared in this broader area more 

sustainably.  

  The Mall plan has also been 

completed in the context of ongoing work, and 

the Commission has seen many projects over the 

past four years for projects on the Mall, and 

some of the most notable ones include the levy 

and certainly memorials, some of which have 

just been having ground broken, but also ones 

that are now nearing completion, such as 

Martin Luther King. 

  The Commission just two months ago 

saw a concept for perimeter security at the 

Jefferson, and certainly you are aware with 

the work this past year under the Stimulus Act 

for the World War I Memorial and particularly 

for work at the Lincoln Memorial.   
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  This is the composite of, shown 

graphically, of all of the ideas in the Mall 

plan, and I spent quite a bit of time talking 

about this at the March meeting.  I know that 

not all commissioners were at that March 

meeting, and I'm happy to answer any 

individual questions if you like. 

  But it's a little hard to explain 

everything from here.  So I'm going to show a 

series of some of the maps that show, by 

scene, that show some of the details for 

what's on the Mall plan. 

  Park Service has for the first 

time tried conservation zoning of the Mall, to 

make some of the points of the Mall plan be 

very clear.  The red areas are the memorial 

areas, which received the highest level of 

protection from use, and the character 

protection areas are areas such as 

Constitution Lake and the elm panels, where 

the Park Service right now does permit some 

special events, but in the future would like 
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to direct those sponsors to other areas that 

are more sustainable. 

  Either the turf, which will be 

improved, as you know, or to hardscape areas. 

 So the elms will be protected more 

comprehensively.   

  The yellow is the high use areas. 

 So as you know, the center panels of the 

Mall, and particularly areas around the 

Washington Monument ground, or areas around 

the Reflecting Pool and the hockey fields, and 

then also, of course, the playing fields in 

West Potomac Park. 

  You'll notice that where there are 

yellow areas, there are blue areas.  Those are 

the multi-purpose areas, and this will allow 

for the provision of additional amenities, 

restrooms, food, utilities and hardscape, 

including multi-purpose buildings that will 

serve these functions, and will help to orient 

and provide information to visitors. 

  As you know, one of the proposals 
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is to replace the Sylvan Theater with a more 

comprehensive facility, and also notably at 

the east end of Constitution Lake, a multi-

purpose building there that will provide 

amenities for visitors. 

  Related to that is this map, which 

indicates how First Amendment rights can be 

expressed on the Mall, and the provision of 

places and facilities for that to occur.  The 

one that's received the most comment is the 

idea to redo Union Square, which is now the 

Capitol Reflecting Pool at the east end of the 

Mall, to provide more of a hardscape area, but 

also to put in amenities for the many people 

who gather there. 

  You'll also see, as in the 

previous map, restrooms and food service.  

Again, here's Sylvan Theater.  New boating and 

food along the north side of the Tidal Basin, 

and the survey lodge will be the hub for 

visitors who are mobility impaired.  So there 

will be a Mall-wide network for visitors who 
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need those services. 

  Circulation has been a particular 

interest of this Commission, and this 

composite map shows a range of things.  First 

of all as you know, the Park Service last 

spring issued a FONSI or Finding of No 

Significant Impact for its transportation 

study, and two routes are shown for a future 

Circulator-like system that will provide 

transit, premium transit. 

  It will also have an option for 

interpretation.  The Park Service has 

continued to meet with DDOT and with the bid 

and CPC and others, and thinking about how 

that might occur, and trying to plan for that, 

and the Park Service has suggested that they 

would like the D.C. Circulator to take on that 

role.  But those plans are still in the early 

stage of development.   

  MR. MAY:  Nancy?  I'm sorry. 

  MS. WITHERELL:  Yes. 

  MR. MAY:  Could you point out 
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where the King Memorial is being constructed, 

and what its access will be?  Okay.  So very 

good. 

  MS. WITHERELL:  There will be, in 

the future there will be a route to it through 

a transit route, and I think we'll have bike 

paths in that area.  People will be able to 

walk certainly, and there also is some 

handicapped parking at FDR.   

  This map also shows tour bus 

parking, which actually is the current 

condition as well.  There are many other 

things on this map that also shows bike paths 

along the waterfront and around the city, and 

it shows an existing seasonal circulator 

route, which is shown in yellow.  

  In addition, the Park Service 

intends to upgrade its fields again, so they 

can be used more regularly and be in better 

condition.  This shows the existing number of 

fields.  D.C. Rec manages some of them or 

permits some of them.  Park Service permits 
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others.   

  Park Service would like to move to 

an online permitting process, which will be 

easier for users.  The Commission had many 

comments and recommendations on the draft plan 

last March, and so the staff thought of these 

as the issues to be addressed for this plan, 

and they included adding and updating the maps 

and analysis with the projects now in 

development by the Park Service, and that has 

been done. 

  Prioritizing short-term and long-

term projects to support progress in the 

implementation of the plan, and you have that 

in your packet.  There's an implementation 

chart with a related map. 

  The big item, as a short-term but 

large priority is the development of Union 

Square from the Capitol Reflecting Pool, and 

Park Service, working with  the Trust for the 

National Mall, intends to hold a competition 

in about a year's time to begin that work. 
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  The Park Service also, we asked 

the Park Service and they have done this, to 

incorporate findings of the current National 

Mall turf study, to support the proposed 

protection of vegetation that defines the 

historic plan and vistas of the National Mall, 

specifically the elm panels, to amplify the 

discussion of objectives and strategies for 

improving sustainable resource management and 

for meeting requirements and goals of the 

Executive Order 13514, which is the 

sustainability order. 

  To resume planning and development 

of the proposed visitor transportation system 

with its partners, and that is particularly to 

think through about how the Circulator might 

be used for that, and to implement the 2003 

Olin landscape plan, which primarily is a tree 

planting plan for the Washington Monument 

grounds, revisiting it as warranted, in 

concert with the Smithsonian and its 

development of the National Museum of African-
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American History and Culture, and with other 

anticipated development on the grounds.  That 

is occurring through the consultation, which 

includes the Smithsonian and the Park Service 

for the development of the museum. 

  The plan is consistent with the 

comprehensive plan, particularly with the 

parks and open space element, the environment 

element, preservation and historic features 

element, and the transportation element. 

  The Mall plan supports three major 

themes of the comprehensive plan: To 

accommodate federal and National Capitol 

activities, to reinforce smarter, more 

coordinated growth, and to support 

coordination with local and regional 

governments. 

  The Park Service has completed a 

final environmental impact statement, and has 

determined that the plan will not impair Park 

resources, values.  EPA is satisfied with the 

document, and Secretary Salazar signed a 
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Record of Decision on November 9th. 

  The Park Service has also executed 

a programmatic agreement to fulfill 

requirements for the National Historic 

Preservation Act.  Our executive director is 

one of the signatories, one of the invited 

signatories, as was the Smithsonian, which has 

signed the programmatic agreement as well. 

  Stipulations include further 

documentation and evaluation for Park Service 

properties on the National Mall, including 

identifying national historic landmarks.  Then 

working in concert with other agencies to 

evaluate resources toward a future historic 

district for the National Mall, or even for a 

larger area encompassing the monumental core. 

  This was a specific request for 

any of the consulting parties, including the 

Committee of 100, the National Trust for 

Historic Preservation, and the Coalition to 

Save Our Mall. 

  And finally, I just want to remind 
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commissioners that implementation of 

individual projects in the plan will require 

future preservation consultation, and may 

require further NEPA analysis as well.  The 

Commission  will see all of these projects as 

they come individually. 

  Therefore, it's the executive 

director's recommendation that the Commission 

approve the National Mall Plan, noting that 

the Mall plan is based on the preferred 

alternative presented and analyzed in the Park 

Service's final EIS, Record of Decision and 

its 106 programmatic agreement, that 

additional compliance with NEPA and NHPA will 

be required for the development and 

implementation of many of the Mall plan's 

proposed projects, and that the siting and 

design of the individual projects are subject 

to the Commission's review and approval. 

  We commend the Park Service for 

completing a well-considered plan that 

balances the equally important requirements 
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for stewardship of the national and cultural 

resources of the Mall's symbolic historic 

landscape, and for the encouragement and 

accommodation of public access and use, and 

for meeting the planning and management 

objectives for the National Mall Plan within 

Washington's broader planning context, and for 

complementing and reinforcing the monumental 

core framework plan, which protects the 

historic landscape of the National Mall by 

extending some of its qualities to adjacent 

areas, and by creating linkage with the 

National Mall. 

  And for supporting the major goals 

of the National Mall Plan, including 

conservation of the Mall's nationally 

significant natural resources through the use 

of best practices for the improvement and 

protection of the turf, lawn and trees, 

including management of the intensity, 

duration and location of special events, the 

development of a visitor transportation system 
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for the Mall that offers optional 

interpretation, is well-linked with transit 

service and has a coordinated fare structure; 

improvements in the appearance, number and 

variety of visitor amenities and services 

through the redevelopment of appropriate sites 

with multi-purpose facilities dispersed 

throughout the National Mall; improvements to 

the National Mall as a civic stage to include 

the redevelopment of the Capitol Reflecting 

Pool as Union Square, with a comprehensive 

high caliber landscape plan that will connect 

the National Mall and the U.S. Capitol, and 

the continuation of the National Mall as the 

civic venue for the expression of First 

Amendment rights; for the provision of 

universal access throughout the National Mall; 

for the expansion and separation of the 

bicycle path system for recreation and 

circulation, pedestrian safety; and for the 

rehabilitation of athletic fields to increase 

capacity, flexibility and durability. 
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  For the development of new and 

improved infrastructures, so that the National 

Mall becomes a model of sustainable urban park 

development and management.  Finally, we note 

that the Park Service, in the development of 

the final environmental impact statement in 

the National Mall Plan, has responded to the 

Commission's March 4th, 2010 comments and 

recommendations on the draft plan.   

  That concludes the presentation.  

I'm happy to answer questions.  We also have a 

full team from the Park Service here as well. 

[INSERT - THE NATIONAL MALL] 
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  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Thank you, Ms. 

Witherall. 

  What I'd like to do is perhaps 

hold the bulk of our deliberations until after 

the public comment.  We have a half dozen 

folks signed up.   

  That said, however, if there are 

particular on point questions or 

clarifications we want to ask Ms. Witherall or 

the team while she's here and it's fresh in 

her mind, I would certainly entertain that 

now.   

  Any burning questions?  Mr. May, 

you want to hold off, I presume until -- okay. 

Let's go right to the public comment period.  

I wanted to hold off, so that when we do 

deliberate, we will have benefit of what we 

hear from the public as well. 

  We have six people signed up.  

Each person represents an organization, so 

that entitles each person to have five 

minutes.  You'll notice that there is a clock 



 

 

 NEAL R. GROSS 
 COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS 
 1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W. 
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C.  20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com 

 
 
 38 

on the wall that will count down and help you 

keep track, and at the end there will be a 

delicate chirp to remind you to wrap up. 

[INSERT - LIST OF REGISTERED SPEAKERS] 
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  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Six people.  

First is Ms. Caroline Cunningham of the Trust 

for the National Mall, who will be followed by 

Judy Scott Feldman and third will be Julia 

Lent. 

  So Ms. Cunningham, welcome. 

  MS. CUNNINGHAM:  Thank you very 

much.  Mr. Chairman, commissioners, Marcel, 

thank you so much for having me and giving the 

Trust for the National Mall the opportunity to 

endorse and wholeheartedly support the 

National Mall Plan.   

  You know, when Secretary Salazar 

on November 9th signed the Record of Decision, 

it took me a day or so to step back and look 

at this historic moment.  There have only been 

a small handful of plans ever delivered in the 

design of the National Mall, and the first 

being 1791, with Pierre L'Enfant handing his 

plan to George Washington. 

  So this moment and this decision 

that you will be making today is very 
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important to our country and the future of the 

space.  It's important for the Trust for the 

National Mall that this is complete.  It will 

allow our organization to raise the funds 

necessary to ensure the future of this 

important space for the country and for the 

world. 

  I want to note that the process 

that the National Park Service created was an 

inclusive process, with more than 34,000 

comments from the public, with hundreds of 

agencies and organizations involved, looking 

at the best and best practices from around the 

world, and that's a very important issue that 

I think that we should look at in making the 

decision, the final decision of this plan. 

  The other thing is that the plan 

addresses some of the important needs of this 

park.  It preserves the space in a way that we 

 think is important; it creates infrastructure 

improvements, from not only the crumbling 

walkways, the waterways that are fouled, a 
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long list of issues that have not been 

addressed in any effective manner for the last 

30 years. 

  It does it in a way that is 

sustainable for the long term, and looking at 

maintenance of this space, so that once areas 

are taken care of, that they will be 

maintained in perpetuity, and that 

importantly, that we engage visitors in an 

enjoyable in a new fashion that has never been 

envisioned before, with new technology, 

bringing the important history of the space to 

the public in a way that's never been done 

before, and making it a more lively space 

through public performance spaces that have 

been increased, and other opportunities 

throughout the park. 

  We're very excited about this 

plan.  The Trust for the National Mall Board 

of Directors endorses this plan, and I think 

the other thing that's exciting for us, that 

we have been able to work with many 
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organizations, including the National Capital 

Planning Commission, on looking at how do you 

do temporary commemoration, how do you do 

temporary urbanism in a way that's exciting 

for our city and in fact for the world. 

  So the Trust for the National Mall 

endorses this plan and we encourage every 

Commissioner to endorse it, so that we can 

move forward with this exciting new chapter in 

the Mall's history.  Thank you. 

[INSERT - WRITTEN STATEMENT OF CAROLINE 

CUNNINGHAM] 
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  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Thank you, Ms. 

Cunningham.  Next is Dr. Judy Scott Feldman, 

with the National Coalition to Save Our Mall. 

 Welcome. 

  DR. SCOTT FELDMAN:  Thank you.  

Good afternoon Chairman Bryant and 

commissioners.  I'm Judy Scott Feldman, 

founder and chair of the National Coalition to 

Save Our Mall.  We're marking our 10th 

anniversary this year as an independent 

citizens organization, dedicated to educating 

the public about the national significance of 

the Mall, and advocating for comprehensive 

long-range planning to assure that the Mall 

fulfills its role and its promise as one of 

our country's iconic landscapes, a gathering 

place for citizens petitioning their 

government, and the stage for American 

democracy in our third century. 

  Our Coalition welcomes the 

completion of the National Park Service's 

National Mall Plan.  Every one of us who spent 
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time in the Mall know that it sorely needs the 

kind of attention and improvements outlined in 

the plan: refurbished landscape, restoration 

of Constitution Gardens, improved visitor 

amenities. 

  We also welcome the role of the 

Trust for the Mall, which has established 

itself as a crucial partner with the Park 

Service in implementing the plan.  The demands 

are great, and I personally have contributed 

to the Trust, to help advance its mission. 

  As grateful as we are for what the 

Park Service has done though, we should be 

clear that this plan falls short of what we 

need if the Mall is in fact to function to 

fulfill its role and its promise in American 

life today. 

  As the NCPC staff report states, 

this a National Mall Plan focuses solely on 

management of lands within the Park Service's 

domain.  Let me state what our Coalition 

believes a true plan for the Mall would 
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address.   

  What are the Mall's boundaries?  

Most assuredly, they are broader than Park 

Service lands.  What if the National Gallery, 

the Smithsonian Museums, the Capitol Grounds. 

 Clearly, any National Mall Plan worthy of 

that name must include the entire Mall and all 

constituencies.   

  The plan assets that the Mall is a 

completed work of art, but is it?  Congress 

imposes a moratorium, but meantime has 

approved the African-American Museum, while 

the Park Service plan, despite the moratorium, 

proposes two major visitors centers. 

  To say the Mall is complete 

strikes us as essentially saying American 

history has come to a screeching halt, and 

none of us believes that.  We have a rich 

history, we will continue to have a rich 

history as long as America si the land of 

promise and accomplishment. 

  More of the story could and should 
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be told.  How can we foster telling more of 

the American experience short of paving over 

the Mall?  I'm encouraged to see NCPC 

sponsoring a forum "Beyond Granite" on 

December 8th that explores this very question. 

  Our Coalition has proposed before 

and we do so again, that Congress has an 

opportunity to expand the boundaries to 

embrace new monuments, new museums and new or 

relocated activities, such as the Folk Life 

Festival. 

  There are ample attractive 

possibilities, some shown in NCPC's new 

framework plan, such as the L'Enfant 

Promenade, the Banneker Overlook and across 

the bridge to East Potomac Park.  The Mall is 

an economic engine for the region, and can be 

more fully integrated into the fabric of the 

District, a fabric of the District and the 

region. 

  Tourmobile offers interpretive 

services at a cost, but as a mode of 
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transportation it simply is not sufficient.  

The Circulator is a step in the right 

direction, but is limited seasonally and does 

not extend to the Lincoln Memorial.  Isn't it 

long past due to have a truly viable, 

functioning affordable means of getting around 

this two-mile expanse? 

  Perhaps most challenging is the 

question of how the various agencies and 

entities on the Mall can work together to 

ensure consistent and compatible planning and 

development.  For that, we need some form of 

uniformed Mall governing body, and a 

comprehensive vision for the entire Mall.   

  In conclusion, our Coalition felt 

a sense of optimism in 2005 during the Senate 

hearing that launched this Mall planning 

process, both because the Coalition was 

invited to testify and because of what was 

said. 

  Chairman Craig Thomas spoke of the 

need for a third century Mall plan, and stated 
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his intention to create a commission like the 

McMillan Commission of a century ago.  Senator 

Daniel Akaka said it was important to get 

beyond piecemeal planning to address "the 

complete vision of what the Mall could be and 

what it should be." 

  He spoke enthusiastically about 

the possibilities of Mall expansion, maybe 

down South Capitol Street.  Senator, and now 

Secretary of Interior Ken Salazar spoke of the 

problem of fragmented management, and the need 

for some kind of Mall entity to coordinate 

Mall planning and management. 

  Asked to respond, John Parsons of 

the Park Service, David Childs, then chair of 

the Commission of Fine Arts, and John Cogbill, 

then chair of the NCPC, spoke of how they 

would work together and involve the most 

talented, visionary designers to create the 

new McMillan Plan for the 21st century. 

  Well, that didn't happen.  Already 

in 2006, the Park Service narrowed the Plan's 
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scope and the federal and District review 

agencies went along. 

  Our Coalition has long advocated 

the need for a comprehensive, forward-looking 

plan to speak to these very basic questions 

I've outlined in my testimony, and to provide 

the vision that in our nation's earlier 

history, which derived from the L'Enfant plan 

and McMillan plan.  

  We will now redouble our efforts 

to create that visionary plan, for this needs 

to be done if we are to realize the most 

promise in American life into the third 

century.  Thank you.  I'd be happy to take any 

questions. 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Next is Julia 

Lent, and on deck will be Diane Mayhew, 

followed by Richard Reinhard, and then last, 

Mr. John Fondersmith.  Ms. Lent, welcome. 

  MS. LENT:  Thank you.  Chairman 

Bryant and members of the National Capital 

Planning Commission, thank you for the 



 

 

 NEAL R. GROSS 
 COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS 
 1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W. 
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C.  20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com 

 
 
 50 

opportunity to comment on the National Park 

Service's National Mall Plan.  I'm Julia Lent. 

 I'm Director of Government Affairs for the 

American Society of Landscape Architects, and 

today I represent ASLA.   

  The American Society of Landscape 

Architect strongly supports the overarching 

goals and objectives of the National Park 

Service's National Mal plan.  The plan 

succeeds in rising above the current 

maintenance challenges to envision not just 

what the National Mall should be in 2010, but 

for generations to come. 

  ASLA supports the proposal to 

sponsor an international design competition 

for Union Square.  In March 2009, ASLA's 

multi-disciplinary blue ribbon panel spent 

much of its time focused on this area, 

recognizing its current weaknesses but also 

its inherent potential. 

  ASLA applauds the National Park 

Service for its attention to this area, and 
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its collaboration with the other stakeholders 

 at the site to fully integrate the square 

with the Capitol grounds, and provide natural 

connectivity to the U.S. Botanic Gardens. 

  ASLA stands ready to assist in any 

way to facilitate this competition.  ASLA 

applauds the commitment to sustainability 

within the plan, particularly the application 

of the standards defined by the Sustainable 

Sites initiative.  ASLA is one of the founding 

partners of SITES, along with the Lady Bird 

Johnson Wildflower Center at the University of 

Texas-Austin, and the U.S. Botanic Garden. 

  Through the use of sustainable 

practices for this iconic landscape, the 

National Mall can be a model of sustainable 

design that millions of visitors can visit 

each year.  Sustainable approaches to many of 

the National Mall's natural resources 

challenges, water, storm water, soils and 

vegetation, will do more than just conserve 

resources. 
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  Geren infrastructure and 

sustainable design in the landscape have the 

power to reap positive benefits, not merely 

minimize harm.  ASLA also supports the plan's 

emphasis on improving the experience of 

pedestrians and bicyclists. 

  The integration of trails 

throughout the mail will improve the visitor 

experience and help boost the city's 

burgeoning reputation as a bike-friendly city. 

 Perhaps most critically, the plan recognizes 

the linkages between the Mall's circulation 

patterns, as well as the rest of the city. 

  Other elements of the plan that 

deserve particular praise include replacement 

of the Sylvan Theater with a multi-purpose 

facility for centralized visitor services, 

implementation of the landscape plan as part 

of the Olin Partnership design for the 

Washington Monument, and elevation of the 

Constitution Gardens really to its rightful 

use and purpose. 
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  We also do note a few areas of 

concern.  While the paving system for the 

entire National Mall area needs a redesign, we 

are concerning about selecting a one-size-

fits-all uniform solution for the 26 miles of 

pedestrian paths.  Even as a pallet of 

options, it may not be compatible with each of 

the unique landscapes within the National 

Mall. 

  We have previously expressed 

concern regarding paving the gravel pathways, 

a feature that is permeable, retains little 

heat and has low reflectivity.  The plan  

speaks to encouraging the use of sustainable 

materials.  This must be a priority.   

  If the gravel is to be eliminated, 

the pathways should retain its visual 

character and serve as a permeable low heat, 

low reflective surface, that technology is 

available to provide a durable surface that 

accommodates all users and functions. 

  The plan indicates that a central 
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visitors center may be housed in the Arts and 

Industries Building, which ASLA supports.  

ASLA hopes the new construction can be avoided 

that could eventually be redundant to such a 

use if that were to happen. 

  Wayfinding strategies must 

incorporate all available technology, rather 

than overly rely on signage.  While visitor 

amenities are important, ASLA's particular 

concern with adding seeding will disturb -- 

and other amenities that disturb the visual 

character of a memorial, such as the Vietnam 

Veterans Memorial. 

  We are encouraged that the plan 

emphasizes the placement of additional seating 

away from primary vistas.  In closing, ASLA 

appreciates the tremendous amount of energy 

and dedication that has gone into this plan.  

  The National Park Service is to be 

commended for a thorough process, that's 

brought together American voices from near and 

far, not merely to respond to the crisis of 
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neglect, but to take the National Mall into 

the future, a future with renewed and healthy 

space worthy of being America's front yard. 

  Project by project, it is critical 

that repairs and improvements must not be 

piecemeal, but must proceed as part of a 

comprehensive vision and design.  Thank you 

for the opportunity to comment and to 

contribute to the future of the National Mall. 

  ASLA stands ready to help with the 

design and the implementation of this plan.  

Thank you. 

[INSERT - WRITTEN STATEMENT OF JULIA LENT] 
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  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Thank you, Ms. 

Lent.  Ms. Diane Mayhew. 

  MR. MAYHEW:  Good afternoon.  My 

name is Diana Mayhew.  I'm the president of 

the National Cherry Blossom Festival, and I'm 

happy to be here today.  The National Cherry 

Blossom Festival strongly supports the 

National Mall Plan.  

  The partnership between the 

National Park Service and the National Cherry 

Blossom Festival has evolved over the years.  

The Park Service's active participation has 

helped enhance services for those visiting the 

Tidal Basin and surrounding areas on the Mall, 

for the nation's greatest springtime 

celebration. 

  This plan is the next step towards 

achieving the best experience possible for the 

tourists and residents during the National 

Cherry Blossom Festival, as well as throughout 

the year. 

  Over one million visitors come to 
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Washington, D.C. for the National Cherry 

Blossom Festival, and this plan addresses 

their needs in many ways, while targeting the 

goals of protecting the Mall and its 

resources, preserving its history and 

providing the quintessential American 

experience in the nation's front yard. 

  Visitor safety and accessability 

is extremely important.  We encourage the 

implementation of the Tidal Basin project that 

would include improving the bridges, 

especially the Kutz Bridge, to enable 

pedestrians, strollers, bicycles, those with 

disabilities to move about safely. 

  This improved traffic flow is 

helpful not only during the congested time of 

the festival but year-round, creating a safe, 

walking and biking environment for all 

visitors.  Expanded areas will also allow the 

increase of bike ballet, encouraging alternate 

ways to access the Mall and making it safe to 

do so. 
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  Each year, the number of people 

who use those services of the bike ballet 

increases.  Enhancement to the Jefferson 

Memorial Grounds for tour bus drop will also 

help alleviate congestion and provide a more 

positive visitor experience.  

  The replacement of Sylvan Theater 

with a high quality multi-purpose facility 

will greatly impact the visitors who come to 

see the numerous free performances and 

programming scheduled on the stage each day.  

Enhanced seating, restrooms, and flexible 

space are huge assets, making it more 

attractive for visitors to come, high caliber 

performances and improved grounds will 

encourage people to congregate and linger in a 

particular area that provides crowd management 

and add more dedicated areas for waste 

collection and recycling. 

  The addition of rowboat and kayak 

rentals give another exciting way for the 

public to experience the surrounding beauty.  



 

 

 NEAL R. GROSS 
 COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS 
 1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W. 
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C.  20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com 

 
 
 59 

By working closely with the National Park 

Service, a few years ago we moved the visitor 

welcome services to the paddle boat parking 

lot area on the pavement, which reduced the 

impact to the grounds.  We continue to do this 

practice in future years. 

  The National Cherry Blossom 

Festival very much looks forward to the 

enactment of this plan, as we continue to 

implement improvements with the National Park 

Service, especially going forward into the 

centennial celebration of the gift of Cherry 

Blossom trees in 2012, when even more visitors 

are expected to participate, visit and have a 

once in a lifetime experience on the National 

Mall. 

  Once again, the National Cherry 

Blossom Festival endorses this plan, and we 

thank you very much for the opportunity to 

give this testimony today. 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Thank you Ms. 

Mayhew very much.  Next is Mr. Reinhard, 
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followed by Mr. Fondersmith.  Mr. Reinhard, 

welcome. 

  MR. REINHARD:  Thank you.  Mr. 

Chairman and Commission members, our executive 

director, Rich Bradley and I, thank you for 

this opportunity, and the Downtown Business 

Improvement District reiterates its 

enthusiastic support of the National Park 

Service's National Mall Plan. 

  The Downtown BID is a private, 

non-profit organization.  We provide services 

to help make downtown D.C. a remarkable urban 

experience for all.  Our special district, 

where property owners have agreed to tax 

themselves $10 million annually to fund 

services encompasses a one square mile area, 

roughly from Massachusetts Avenue on the north 

to the National Mall on the south, from Union 

Station on the east to the White House on the 

west. 

  The Downtown BID has been Section 

106 consulting party to the National Mall Plan 
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Initiative, and as such, NPS has encouraged us 

to be involved in this plan every step of the 

way, and we've participated to the best of our 

ability. 

  Just like downtown D.C., which has 

increased its number of employees and 

residents by 50 percent over the last 14 

years, and its number of visitors by more than 

100 percent over that some time period, the 

National Mall is being called upon to host 

more and more patrons every year. 

  Future growth is expected to be 

exponential.  25 million annual visitors 

today, 42 million annual visitors in 20 years. 

 On the one hand, isn't that great, millions 

more Americans and international visitors 

learning about the history of our land? 

  But on the other hand, isn't it 

just a little bit scary to us all, thinking 

about how the current National Mall will 

accommodate these visitors.  The development 

of the Southwest Waterfront, the Capitol 



 

 

 NEAL R. GROSS 
 COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS 
 1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W. 
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C.  20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com 

 
 
 62 

Riverfront, the Mount Vernon Triangle and NOMA 

make it even more critical make smart capital 

 improvements to the National Mall, as the 

Mall is now at the heart of a robust center 

city, rather than being at the edge of its 

downtown. 

  We'd like to address four ways we 

think the National Mall Plan readies for 

action much of what we see as being needed at 

the National Mall.  First, the National Mall 

plan promotes a world class landscape that 

will tell in an improved manner the story of 

America to visitors. 

  The plan protects the historic 

landscape of the McMillan plan.  NPS rightly 

cites the condition of turf and the viability 

of the American elm trees to be critical 

problems, and it identifies corrective 

measures. 

  The National Mall would become 

more user friendly, with more restrooms, 

better facilities for food and drink, better 
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situated range of locations and improved 

signage. 

  It's our observation that current 

concession contracts may neither serve the 

public well, nor serve NPS's need for 

additional revenues, and we urge NPS to take 

immediate action to improve the concession 

contract situation. 

  Second, the National Mall Plan 

helps to create a highly quality local green 

space that serves local residents and workers, 

and ties together the center city.  Ecological 

 improvements would complement the District 

government's efforts to green the city, and 

our private developer's efforts to do the same 

thing, along with the U.S. General Services 

Administration. 

  In particular, replacing the 

currently-used potable water in the Reflecting 

Pool, Constitution Gardens Lake and Union 

Square pool with Potomac River water is a 

great ecological Improvement. 
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  Third, the National Mall Plan 

suggests multiple forms of public 

transportation, to make various locations 

around the Mall accessible to the public, 

including for low income and physically 

handicapped persons, through frequent, 

affordable public transit. 

  It's our understanding that the 

District Department of Transportation is 

readying a proposal that would offer D.C. 

Circulator service to the length of the 

National Mall, a service that today is 

prohibited by NPS' interpretation of its own 

regulations. 

  Premium visitor services may be a 

private good, but we think public 

transportation is a public good.  The two have 

been confused and they shouldn't be confused 

anymore.  The Downtown BID urges NPS to move 

ahead promptly with improvements to public 

transportation, as outlined in the plan, and 

would urge using increased National Mall 
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parking revenues to help pay for such 

improvements. 

  We also propose that NPS redouble 

efforts to partner with the city, to invest in 

the infrastructure for improved tour bus 

parking.  

  Fourth and finally, the National 

Mall Plans supports special events being held 

more frequently on lesser-used public spaces, 

and we urge improvements to the uptown parks, 

such as McPherson Square, which is undergoing 

refurbishment. 

  Although the details of a number 

of the recommendations undoubtedly can be 

debated, the many proposed projects and 

programs are solid.  Now is the time to 

implement them for all of us to work together 

on funding. 

  The Downtown BID also comments the 

efforts of the Trust for the National Mall, 

and we note that substantial and consistent 

funding will need to be provided by Congress 
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over the next decade, to implement the plan, 

so it doesn't become another forsaken list of 

all of our wishes.  Thank you for your 

attention.  We appreciate being here today. 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Thank you very 

much, and finally, Mr. John Fondersmith.  

Welcome. 

  MR. FONDERSMITH:  Thank you, Mr. 

Chairman, members of the Commission.  I'm John 

Fondersmith, representing the Committee of 100 

on the Federal City, and I should note that 

Richard Westbrook, the chair of the Planning 

Subcommittee is here today. 

  We are pleased to comment on this 

plan that's now before you.  As you know, let 

me just say the Committee of 100 is one of the 

consulting parties in the Section 106 process, 

and we've listed in our testimony numerous 

comments and testimony we've given, both on 

various phases of the National Mall Plan, the 

projects on the National Mall, and the 

Monumental Core Framework plan that was 
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prepared by this Commission and the Commission 

of Fine Arts. 

  We are especially concerned with 

the connections and linkages between the 

surrounding city and the monumental core, 

including the National Mall.  Now this phase 

of the National Mall, this phase of the 

planning for the National Mall has reached a 

conclusion. 

  We note that a number of changes 

and modifications were made to the draft plan 

that were recommended by various agencies, 

organizations and so on, including some of 

those from the Committee of 100. 

  We haven't agreed with all the 

National Park Service proposals, and we still 

have some continuing concerns, as indicated 

below.  But we do recognize certainly, through 

the process that we've all been through, the 

tremendous effort that the Park Service has 

made, balancing many legal and planning 

concerns, and dealing with diverse and 
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sometimes competing suggestions. 

  So we do want to express our 

appreciation to the Park Service staff and 

consultants that have worked over the past 

several years on this plan, and to especially 

note the work of Susan Spain, the National 

Mall Plan project executive, in directing and 

guiding such a long and demanding process. 

  This is to be a 50-year plan, 

which means it's in principle extending to 

2050, 2060.  We realize it will evolve over 

that time.  But in preparing the plan, the 

Park Service has outlined the entire Mall, of 

course, but has dealt only in detail with the 

area that is under Park Service jurisdiction.  

  We really feel that this is still 

fragmented planning, or what appears from 

outside to be incomplete, is not truly 

sufficient when we're looking ahead for the 

next 50 years. 

  We understand that the Commission 

is now poised to approve this National Mall 
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Plan, and again, indeed we're glad to see that 

done.  However, we do recommend that NCPC make 

clear that additional work is needed to 

achieve a truly comprehensive and 

understandable plan for the entire National 

Mall, not just the area under the jurisdiction 

of the Park Service. 

  We've listed some of the major 

concerns, and we still have major items that 

we have concerns with.  I see by the clock I 

don't have time really to go through all of 

those.  So what are the next steps after this 

plan is adopted? 

  They have, the Park Service has 

indicated additional work that they will do, 

and there will be many projects moving 

forward.  Perhaps key to this is the plans by 

other entities associated with the Mall, the 

Architect of the Capitol, the Smithsonian and 

the National Gallery of Art, to complete their 

planning and put it forward, at least into the 

public view. 
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  One of the key suggestions is that 

the National Register nomination be prepared 

for the entire National Mall and perhaps some 

surrounding areas.  So what is the kind of key 

next step? 

  We recommend, the Committee of 100 

recommends that the NCPC now step forward and 

undertake whatever additional work over the 

next several years, to bring the still 

unresolved elements in the National Mall into 

 a true, coordinate framework. 

  There's one issue that we've 

mentioned previously to the Park Service, but 

is really outside their purview, and that's 

what we call the "view to the west."  It 

involves the view looking west from the 

Capitol and other locations on the National 

Mall, that needs attention and hopefully 

attention from this Commission. 

  So we look forward to continuing 

to work with the Park Service, this Commission 

and other agencies and entities involved.  
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Thank you. 

[INSERT - WRITTEN STATEMENT OF THE COMMITTEE 

OF 100 ON THE FEDERAL CITY] 
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  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Thank you, Mr. 

Fondersmith and thank you to all of our 

speakers who have come.  This has been 

significant project that has been a long time 

in coming, in which Ms. Witherall did a very 

good job of presenting an overview succinctly. 

  That ends the public comment 

section, session, and I would like to return, 

bring it back to the Commission for 

deliberations, discussion and questions.  Mr. 

May? 

  MR. MAY:  Mr. Chairman, I do have 

a few things to say, but I would prefer to 

conclude the discussion, if that's possible, 

and then be able to make a motion. 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Absolutely.  

Questions or comments about -- 

  MR. DIXON:  Mr. Chairman, for 

purposes of discussion, should we move this 

and have it on the table so we can discuss it? 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Let's hold off 

momentarily, so Mr. May can have the privilege 
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at the appropriate time, given his work. 

  MR. DIXON:  Okay, okay.  First of 

all, I want to share support for the Park 

Service and what they've been doing.  I know 

there are a lot of folks who still have some 

tweaks and some additions they want.  My major 

focus and concern would be, and I want to 

commend them for the tough job; I've been 

around it for a while, this discussion. 

  But the Committee of 100's concern 

for a broader view, that the Commission might 

want to take on.  It seems to be something 

that makes sense, a lot of sense, and I hope 

that we will find a way to incorporate that 

effort, which is probably outside of this 

discussion, but certainly integrated into it. 

 So I'd like to encourage that. 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Other questions 

or comments? 

  MR. SIMPSON:  Mr. Chair, excuse 

me.  I just want to say that the plan is 

awesome.  The National Park Service National 
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Mall Plan is something that I admire. 

  As an advocate and as a consumer, 

and I consider myself a consumer of the 

National Park Service, because I'm pretty much 

down there using the facilities on a daily 

basis, and as a resident of Washington, D.C., 

it's something that some of us tend to 

neglect. 

  However, there's one thing that 

I've read through all of this material, and I 

was like, you know, I was so excited about 

coming to this Board meeting and reading it.  

It's the water fountains, and it's like when 

you bring family in from out of town and 

you're basically on the Mall from the 

inauguration, 4th of July celebrations, if you 

have water bottles and people who are selling 

them, turn into to be $5 for a bottle of 

water. 

  But if we had more water fountains 

along the Mall area, it would definitely help. 

 People who have children basically to 
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rehydrate, when you're basically lost in an 

area where you don't know where you're going. 

  This is -- this stems from us 

running from how much we use the National 

Park, running through Rock Creek Park.  We 

have something called a National Mall Run, and 

we basically pretty much run through all of 

the memorials.  The only thing that we miss 

are more water fountains.  

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Thank you for 

that very selfish request. 

  (Laughter.) 

  MS. WITHERELL:  On behalf of 

everybody. 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Thank you.  Mr. 

Hart, did you have a -- 

  MR. HART:  Yes.  I think this is a 

great plan, and it's been long in development, 

and it's reached out to an awful lot of 

people, incorporating a lot of input.  I 

compliment the National Park Service in 

handling that effort, and I recognize that the 
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National Park Service is limited to the 

properties that it has under its purview. 

  I agree with Mr. Arrington, that 

we really need to reach out those other 

agencies and organizations that have part of 

what we all view as the National Mall, in 

looking to integrate the complete experience.  

  So I think that there's work ahead 

of us, and I've heard from, you know, the 

Committee and the Coalition and their 

interests, and I second it. 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Mr. Miller. 

  MR. MILLER:  Yes.  I just wanted 

to thank the staff and the public speakers for 

their comments today, and associate myself 

with the remarks of those who called for 

integrate planning, and this Commission seems 

to be in the position that it can do that.   

  It can fulfill that role of 

bringing, making sure that there is the 

coordinated planning with the National Gallery 

and the Smithsonian properties, and what's 
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going on at East Potomac Park, all of which we 

consider as the National Mall on the Capitol 

grounds. 

  I just had a couple of questions. 

 You mentioned in your presentation, Ms. 

Witherall, that there's ongoing discussions in 

the early stages with the D.C. Circulator.  

What is the time table for getting the 

Circulator onto the Mall, and providing the 

low cost public transportation that Downtown 

Bid and the Coalition and the Committee of 

100, all of us have talked about a long time? 

  MS. WITHERELL:  I have not heard 

that a specific time line has developed, and 

perhaps Mr. May can respond. 

  MR. MILLER:  Or maybe Ms. 

Tregoning can address that. 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  I was going say, 

defer to Ms. Tregoning. 

  MR. MILLER:  --since DDOT is 

involved in that.   

  MS. TREGONING:  Are you -- do you 
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have other remarks? 

  MR. MILLER:  I have other 

questions, but I think you can answer this 

one. 

  MS. TREGONING:  This is something 

that we're working on with the Park Service, 

and as you are aware, we've recently released 

a ten year plan for the Circulator, the 

proposed expansion of the Circulator that 

includes at least a couple of routes that are 

very significant, I think, to the National 

Mall and the ability of the Circulator to 

provide some of that transit service on the 

Mall with potentially interpretation. 

  So we're trying right now to get a 

little bit better information on the levels of 

visitation and ridership, so that we can take 

it to the next step with the proposal. 

  MR. MILLER:  Do you have any 

estimate of when that could be done? 

  MS. TREGONING:  Soon. 

  MR. MILLER:  Another question was 
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about the, or another reference Ms. Witherall 

made to the permitting process for the 

recreation fields, that some fields are 

District, some are NPS, I guess, and NPS hopes 

to be going online. 

  I know our CapitalSpace plan I 

believe talks about better integrating these 

two permitting functions, maybe, in one 

central location.  Can you just address what's 

happening on that front? 

  MR. MAY:  I can say that within 

the Park Service, we are now starting to take 

some steps to look at the automated or rather 

online permitting process.  We are very 

interested in continuing discussions with the 

District about doing, if not a single 

permitting process, at least a centralized 

portal, so that it's a little bit clearer and 

try to make the process easier for the public, 

easier to understand and more effective 

generally speaking. 

  There are a lot of complications 
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to it.  It is based on an agreement that goes 

back to the 1940's, and it's -- the guidance 

that we have for it is not very clear, and the 

way we've sort of -- the District and the Park 

Service have developed certain practices that 

aren't always in sync on this. 

  But we're very anxious to get it 

altogether, and would like to continue that 

discussion with the District, in the context 

of, you know, furthering the goals of 

CapitalSpace. 

  MR. MILLER:  That's good to hear, 

and I certainly would support those efforts to 

get our permitting processes in sync.  Just 

the last question, adding parking meters on 

certain other streets that are controlled by 

the Park Service.  Which streets are those and 

do you have an estimate of what the revenues 

you're going to get?  Will it be dedicated to 

the Malls, or it just will go into the big 

deficit reduction commission? 

  MR. MAY:  I think I'm going to ask 
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Steve Lorenzetti, who's the deputy 

superintendent of the Mall, to answer that. 

  MR. LORENZETTI:  Yes.  That's 

actually in the alternate transportation plan, 

which was kind of included with the National 

Mall Plan, because they both have to go 

together hand in hand.  Right now, we're 

looking at Madison Drive and Jefferson Drive, 

as well as sections of Ohio Drive, and the 

section of Constitution Avenue which is 

currently not metered that is owned by the 

Park Service, administered by the Park 

Service. 

  We don't have an exact number yet. 

 There is actually issues with doing this in 

the Park Service.  There's a freeze right now 

on new transportation fees in the Park Service 

until we're sure we're doing it in an 

equitable way.  When that's lifted, we look to 

go forward with this. 

  The goal of our plan is to use the 

fees from parking to go toward whatever bus 
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system ends up in the park, possibly the 

Circulator like Peter and Harriet said.  We're 

working with the Circulator right now, so we 

can bring down any price for our visitors, to 

make it as reasonable as possible. 

  MR. MILLER:  Are there any plans, 

this is outside the National Mall, plans for 

parking meters along East Potomac Park, where 

lots of commuters, I think, park? 

  MR. MAY:  That's Ohio Drive, which 

is what Steve referred to. 

  MR. LORENZETTI:  Well, the Ohio 

Drive part we're looking at is basically in 

the National Mall, below that.  At the moment, 

there are no plans to put meters in. 

  MR. MILLER:  Yes.  I was talking 

about below that, yes. 

  MR. LORENZETTI:  In what is 

considered East Potomac Park, we're right now 

not looking at meters. 

  MR. MILLER:  That may be a 

potential revenue source for East Potomac Park 
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that needs some work too, or the Mall. 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Mr. Miles. 

  MR. MILES:  Just briefly, sir, 

about the National Park Service and its 

partners.  A very thorough presentation as 

well as plan.  Two questions I have.  Just 

looking at the map, one thing that jumps out 

at me is an explosion of what is identified as 

interactive water features. 

  If we could have background as to 

what those are?  Is it maybe part of sort of a 

water management treatment, as well as there's 

a lot going on, and I think we had a couple of 

really good presentations related to 

wayfinding, and whether going forward in the 

next decade is that still a priority, in terms 

of consistency? 

  MS. WITHERELL:  The interactive 

water features that Mr. Miles is referring to 

is on the second page, the full composite 

preferred alternative in your sort of the 

addendum, and these have not been fully 
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defined. 

  But the idea is that the Mall gets 

very hot in the summer, and they could be 

coolers or jets or something that could be 

temporary or could come on in the summer, so 

that children could cool themselves.   

  So it's that kind of idea, and 

also the idea of bringing water back to the 

Mall, which the McMillan plan envisioned. So 

sort of an update of that idea.  I'm sorry.  

I've forgotten your second question. 

  MR. MILES:  Just remembering 

wayfinding. 

  MS. WITHERELL:  Oh, wayfinding, 

I'm sorry.  the Commission approved the final 

wayfinding plan about a year ago, and plans to 

have signs up, I believe, for the coming 

tourist season, and that's that sort of 600 

sign comprehensive plan that the Commission 

reviewed last year. 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Mr. Provancha, 

then Mr. Miles. 
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  MR. PROVANCHA:  Let me start with 

commendations to the staff.  Outstanding, very 

comprehensive report as we have come to 

expect.  Also congratulations to the Park 

Service for a very comprehensive, well 

thought-out, very well-integrated plan.  

  I'm particularly pleased to see 

the increase in amenities.  There was recently 

kind of a tongue in cheek article in the 

Washington Post about the lack of amenities on 

the Mall, and the few that exist are off the 

beaten path or not well-known. 

  The article went on to even rank 

the best bathrooms and best places to get 

something to eat around the Mall.  So that was 

very well-received.  There's some feedback 

about the scope of the plan.  From our 

perspective, I think the Park Service 

fulfilled the scope of their charter.  It's 

always nice to go outside the defined 

boundaries and parameters.  But I think they 

made a magnificent effort. 
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  The staff commended the Park 

Service on a couple of things.  One that was 

cited in the report but not necessarily in the 

briefing was the public consultation and the 

outreach, I think, was also highly 

commendable. 

  One of the other things that was 

cited on Slide 15 of Ms. Witherall's 

comprehensive presentation was the response.  

Two things.  I think it reflected very well 

overall on the staff on how comprehensive 

those six recommendations were, and it also 

reflects simultaneously very well on the Park 

Service, for addressing each of those and 

incorporating those responses at significant 

additional effort and cost. 

  A couple of other comments.  The 

staff report specifically supports, commends, 

concurs with almost all of the 

recommendations, except for the one on page 22 

about redevelopment of the reflecting pool at 

Union Square.  But my assumption is the staff 
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is supportive of that element of the Park 

Service plan; is that correct? 

  MS. WITHERELL:  Correct. 

  MR. PROVANCHA:  Okay.  A couple of 

minor questions on some of the plans.  On the 

one that's entitled "The Civic Stage," it 

shows primary public gathering areas, and it 

appears to be along the reflecting pool, that 

the only designated primary gathering areas 

would be to the south. 

  Does that mean that the northern 

portion, the north side of the reflecting pool 

 would not be available or allowed to be used 

in the future for a primary public gathering 

area? 

  MS. WITHERELL:  Well, I think we 

need to underscore the word "primary."  But 

also to the north of the reflecting pool, 

there is a pretty substantial change in grade 

with a berm, which is the levy, and then 

beyond that we're in -- we have Constitution 

Gardens Lake and also the area of influence of 
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the Vietnam Veterans Memorial. 

  MR. PROVANCHA:  So it's mostly 

terrain-driven that changes the elevation?  Is 

that the -- 

  MS. WITHERELL:  However, the Park 

Service is planning to use Constitution 

Gardens in a much more vital way than it is 

used now, but have a lot of that attention 

focused toward the east end.  You see the new 

facility. 

  MR. PROVANCHA:  Okay.  Question 

about the Circulator.  It shows that the 

circulation will go across Arlington Memorial, 

reflecting the response about what's going on 

to the west of this zone.  What monuments on 

the west side would be supported?  I'm 

assuming Arlington Cemetery.  Would we also 

have other existing monuments that are either 

not supported now or under-supported?  I'm 

thinking Iwo Jima, Pentagon Memorial, Air 

Force Memorial.  Is there a possibility of 

some collaboration to extend the Circulator to 
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those other monuments? 

  MS. WITHERELL:  The specific 

routes are being planned now, to include that 

for tourists. 

  MR. PROVANCHA:  Okay.  I was very 

impressed with the scope of this very 

comprehensive plan.  Just a couple of 

questions.  The Kutz Bridge improvements were 

mentioned a couple of times.   

  Just for confirmation, High 

Priority Project No. 11, Tidal Basin area, 

circulation of bridges.  Does that also 

include some Kutz Bridge upgrades or for 

circulation? 

  MS. WITHERELL:  That is 

incorporated in that. 

  MR. PROVANCHA:  Also one of the 

staff recommendations from the March 4th 

meeting was rough order of magnitude cost 

ranges for each of these projects, 

prioritization for these projects.  I think 

the plan responds very well to those 
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recommendations. 

  Could we get just a little bit 

more definition?  What, for example, $3 equals 

high.  Is $3 equals high, is that a million 

dollar project, is that a $100 million 

project?  I'm just trying to get a feel for 

the scope.  Are these total requirements in 

the range of $100 million worth of 

requirements over 50 years, a billion dollars 

worth of projects? 

  MS. SPAIN:  I'm Susan Spain, and I 

was the project executive for the National 

Mall Plan.  We're looking at the $3 symbol 

painting something that's probably well over 

15 to 20 million dollar projects.  The $1 is 

probably under five million, just in those 

ranges. 

  So clearly, as we were looking at 

things, we did not want to give an exact 

dollar figure at this point in time. 

  MR. PROVANCHA:  Of course.  Very 

good.  That concludes my questions.  Thank you 
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and again, kudos to both the staff and the 

Park Service for an outstanding document. 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Ms. Tregoning? 

  MS. TREGONING:  Thank you.  I 

don't want to repeat what many others have 

said, but I do want to congratulate the Park 

Service, I think, on a very good plan, a very 

responsive plan. 

  I know you've been through several 

iterations, both with this Commission and with 

many, many public commenters, and I very much 

appreciate how the plan has changed to 

accommodate those comments and issues. 

  I particularly want to call out 

the sustainability practices that are so 

prominent in this plan, and actually take this 

opportunity not just to commend the Park 

Service, but also to show a little love to 

this particular body, and I don't mean 

necessarily --  

  I really want to identify both 

Marcel Acosta and his leadership as executive 
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director, and the enlightened leadership of 

the current chair and the previous chair. 

  So Chairman Bryant and before him, 

Chairman Cogbill, to really I think change in 

some very fundamental way the way that the 

National Capital Planning Commission interacts 

with other agencies and with the District of 

Columbia. 

  I mean I think for many years, the 

NCPC kind of acted as the brake or the watch 

dog, if you will, preventing bad things from 

happening, you know, on the part of federal 

agencies and the District.  I think the role 

that you are taking on now, which is to kind 

to encourage everybody to reach for such 

objectives, and to collaborate and to really 

be not just a national model but an 

international model for best practices. 

  I mean I think it's exciting for 

me as a member of the Commission, and I'm very 

pleased, you know, to see the results of that. 

 This National Mall Plan is one of those 
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examples, but someone mentioned we recently 

had some success with the Potomac levy, which 

is another example of that kind of leadership. 

  I would also point to the efforts 

on St. Elizabeth's, and our efforts planning 

together for central Washington.  I just think 

it's a great direction that the Commission has 

been going in, and I'm looking around and 

seeing the very positive effects on the ground 

from that kind of interaction.  So let me just 

take a moment to do that.  Thank you. 

  A couple of other comments that I 

just wanted to make.  I'm very pleased, 

obviously, with how the circulation proposals 

 and the preferred alternative reflect, you 

know, the ability and the desirability of 

having some kind of additional transit service 

on the Mall. 

  We have been engaged for a number 

of months now with the Park Service, and I'm 

very grateful for their receptivity to that 

and that potential collaboration.  That being 
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said, we have another opportunity, where we 

have the same kind of issue, and that's our 

wonderful new bike-sharing program, Capitol 

Bike Share, which is sort of a two-wheel 

transit program. 

  It has the same potential 

concessionaire conflict that the Tourmobiles 

seem to have had.  I just would urge the Park 

Service to work together with us to try to 

overcome that, because it's, you know, an all-

day tour versus, you know, the use of these, 

of a bike-share bike for transportation. 

  I think those are very different 

things.  Just to throw a few stats out there, 

we already have 5,000 members.  It's not even 

been two full months or three full months of 

operation yet.  5,000 Capitol Bike Share 

members.  A million minutes of travel on 

shared bicycles so far since we launched 

September 20th. 

  52,000 discrete trips, you know.  

It's really catching on.  We have, between 
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Arlington and the District, we have now just 

over 100 stations, and you know, we're really 

excited about it, and think it would be a 

great addition to the Mall if we can figure 

out a way to make that work. 

  Someone else had mentioned tour 

buses.  I think the Commission is aware that 

in June, Senator Webb sent a letter to the 

District of Columbia, and I think the Park 

Service as well, raising concerns about the 

traffic associated with tour buses, and how 

dangerous and disruptive and polluting and 

there things it was. 

  So one of the glaring missing 

elements, I think, of this Mall plan is a 

scheme to address the issue of tour bus 

circulation.  I know goal-wise, there's a 

desire to try to get people to the Mall in a 

sustainable fashion. 

  Transit will help to do that, but 

I do think that the tour buses, you know, 

continue to be a problem, that we need to 
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collectively work together to try to manage 

that and find a place for them that can easily 

get tourists to the city and to the Mall, but 

not necessarily turn the Mall into a parking 

lot in the summer, with all the associated 

problems. 

  I'll also just mention a couple 

more things with respect to something else 

that we've heard from ASLA.  26 miles of 

pedestrian paths, fantastic.  The fact that 

they would all be paved the same way, I think 

maybe not so great.  We're talking about 

having -- all right, Susan's shaking her head 

that that isn't the case. 

  Well, let me just encourage you to 

make those differentiations in materials, 

because those are subtle signals that bikers 

and pedestrians very religiously observe.  

Bikes don't like to be on gravel, you know, 

because they can slip and slide. 

  So you know, it makes it less 

likely that bikes would be in conflict with 
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pedestrians, and we do all kinds of different 

walking in and around the Mall, some of it for 

a purpose, getting from Point A to Point B.  

Much of it's strolling and enjoying the 

scenery, and the different types of walking 

that people do, I think, really need different 

types of accommodations.   

  So I'll just make that final 

point.  I think that's it for me.  Thank you. 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Thank you.  

There was one noteworthy item in terms of 

wayfinding and transportation is adding 

"National Mall" to the name of one of the 

Metro stops.  I forget which one it was. 

  MS. WITHERELL:  The Smithsonian 

stop. 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Smithsonian 

stop, right, and then having it at that Metro 

stop a visitors center, if you will, will 

help. 

  MS. WITHERELL:  Welcoming area. 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Yeah, 
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information to help.  Not a visitors center, 

but information to help.  I thought that was a 

terrific idea.  Other comments before we turn 

it over to Mr. May of the National Park 

Service? 

  MR. MAY:  Thank you very much, and 

thank you everyone for those comments.  I'm 

not going to try to go through any of it sort 

of point by point, or what was presented by 

the public speakers, the members of the public 

who came to speak today. 

  I will mention just a couple of 

small things, responding to the bike share 

issue in particular, because the Mall plan 

does include expanded use of bicycles for 

transportation around the Mall, and there's no 

reason why that, why we could not be pursing 

that jointly within the context of the Capitol 

Bike Share system, and in fact, we've been 

asking the District Department of 

Transportation for information to support 

those sorts of efforts. 
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  It's been some time coming, but 

we'd like to get that, because we're 

interested in trying to pursue that as well.  

That's actually come to us from a number of 

different directions from across the city, and 

we're interested in following up on that and 

moving that forward. 

  Tour buses, yes, I agree also is a 

bigger issue.  We did address tour buses in 

the context of it being an efficient way of 

moving large groups of people to our sites and 

allowing for those.  But the broader issue of 

where the buses go has been a long-standing 

problem for the city, across the city, not 

just around the Mall, and we'd like to work 

together on that as well. 

  A number of other issues we'd like 

to work together with folks on, and I think, 

and the broader question of the scope of the 

plan versus some of the suggestions, that 

there be a broader planning effort.  On a 

certain level, there have been those broader 
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planning efforts already.  The legacy plan 

certainly is the overarching framework for 

that. 

  The framework plan, which followed 

on, also integrated much of that, and of 

course in the National Mall planning process, 

we had extensive consultations with all of the 

affected agencies, and I would like to thank 

the Smithsonian, the GSA and several other 

agencies who were involved in that aspect of 

the planning process. 

  The resulting plan that we have, 

we think, is a balanced approach at planning 

for the Mall.  We're trying to deal with 

something that's both a sacred space, a 

recreation space, a public forum and a 

significant natural resource for the city. 

  As I said, it fits with earlier 

plans, not just the more recent plans but also 

L'Enfant and McMillan, and it's a vision for 

how the Mall can be preserved and adapted and 

continue to be all that we want it to be, 
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including a place with more water fountains. 

  But that's what it is.  It's a 

very personal experience, and we want to be 

able to be as much for everyone as we can.  It 

has been a tremendous effort.  I would like to 

thank my colleagues in the Park Service, Susan 

Spain and Steve Lorenzetti, who spoke earlier 

for their efforts. 

  Of course, this Commission and the 

staff and Nancy Witherall in particular for 

their efforts in moving this forward.  It has 

been a Herculean effort, I think, particularly 

on Nancy's part in working with Susan.  The 

agencies that -- I didn't mean that the way 

that sounded.  

  (Laughter.) 

  MR. MAY:  I mean to say it was a 

lot of work.  That's all.  It's been a big 

plan, and Susan has been charging forward, 

with Nancy helping out along the way.  So the 

other agencies, as I mentioned before, 

Smithsonian, GSA.  The Commission on Fine 



 

 

 NEAL R. GROSS 
 COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS 
 1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W. 
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C.  20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com 

 
 
 102 

Arts, of course, has been involved in all of 

our consultations. 

  All of the groups who have been 

involved, and those who spoke to us today, 

Downtown BID, the National Cherry Blossom 

Festival, the Committee of 100, the ASLA, who 

didn't just come to speak but also was 

instrumental in organizing a panel that 

consulted with us, the Trust of the National 

Mall and the Coalition to Save Our Mall, of 

course, as well. 

  It really has been a tremendous 

effort, and with that, it is first of all, let 

me say it is a true honor for me to work for 

the National Park Service, and it is an honor 

for me to represent the Secretary of the 

Interior, and it is especially an honor to 

move the approval of the EDR for the National 

Mall Plan. 

  MR. DIXON:  Second. 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  It's been moved 

and seconded that the EDR, as presented -- 
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with the executive director's recommendation, 

as presented, be adopted.  All in favor say 

aye? 

  (Chorus of ayes.) 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Opposed, no. 

  (No response.) 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Unanimous 

adoption. 

  MR. DIXON:  Mr. Chairman, I'd like 

to make one point.  With due respect, also, I 

want to remember John Parsons, who was here at 

the beginning of all this, and served very 

well also, to get some of this going with his 

views. 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Indeed. 

  MR. PROVANCHA:  Also we had six 

different groups speak today.  It's also rare 

that we see the level of support obviously.  

Varied from qualified support to full and 

enthusiastic support.  But I think it's very 

rare that we have the degree of consensus from 

the supporting organizations that spoke today. 



 

 

 NEAL R. GROSS 
 COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS 
 1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W. 
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C.  20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com 

 
 
 104 

 So I wanted to make a special note of that. 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Thank you.  Ms. 

Witherall, thank you very much. 

  MR. DIXON:  Mr. Chairman, I want 

to make one comment on something related to 

this.  It has to do with the bike systems.  

They are credit card-driven, and it creates 

some real problems. 

  I think there was a recent article 

on the news that the credit card use is 

declining astronomically across the country 

because of the economy, and when I was in my 

neighborhood, we have one right down the 

street from me, which I joined, by the way.  

I'm a life member or whatever, a year member 

and I've ridden it a few times. 

  But when I started to explain it 

to some of the folks standing around, they 

said "Oh, credit card," and they walked away. 

 So we've got to think about how we can help. 

 Anybody want to comment on that?  Good. 

  MS. TREGONING:  I'll just say that 
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that's an issue that we have identified from 

the beginning of this system, and we're 

working, as part of an initiative called "Bank 

on D.C." and some foundations, some local 

foundations, to address the issue that you're 

talking about. 

  MR. DIXON:  Very good. 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Thank you.  The 

next agenda item is 5B, and it's the building 

identification signs in the Federal Triangle, 

and we have Ms. Kelly here. 

ITEM 5B - FEDERAL TRIANGLE 

  MS. KELLY:  Good afternoon Mr. 

Chairman and members of the Commission.  The 

General Services Administration has submitted 

the concept design for building identification 

signs for its buildings in the Federal 

Triangle.   

  GSA is using the Federal Triangle 

as a pilot area, with the intention to extend 

the signage program to its building in the 

National Capital Region, and eventually 
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nationally.   

  Over the past several years, GSA 

has examined its building signage throughout 

the region for replacement, due to its poor 

condition.  With the replacement program, GSA 

intends to create one signage design, so that 

building signage could have a uniform 

appearance that visitors could easily 

recognize. 

  Here, you can see some of the 

existing signage of GSA buildings throughout 

the region.  Signage for the Federal Triangle 

is mainly the ribbon signage seen in the left 

image. 

  To determine what sign design 

should be implemented, GSA conducted a multi-

year study that evaluated signage height, 

style, color and content hierarchy.  The 

proposed sign is a result of that study.  GSA 

evaluated existing signage throughout the 

region, such as Metro pylons and other 

existing street signs, and found that nine 
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feet was the best height to compliment 

existing signage and allow for greater 

visibility. 

  The proposed signs will be nine 

feet in height, two feet, six inches wide and 

three inches thick.  GSA also evaluated 

different styles and colors for Compatibility 

with all building designs, and found that a 

simple, straight design with no detailing, 

that is dark in color, works best with both 

historic and modern buildings. 

  The proposed sign is a dark, 

metallic bronze paint with a later bronze for 

lettering and symbols.  The sign will be a 

double-sided aluminum fabrication, and the 

coloring will be applied as a two-part epoxy. 

  For the proposed hierarchy of the 

sign, GSA concluded that the building address 

should be the primary message, because this 

element remains constant.  Agency names are 

difficult as the primary message, because 

buildings can have multiple tenant agencies. 
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  The Congressional designated name 

of the building can also be difficult, because 

these names are not often known to the general 

public, and therefore, GSA is proposing that 

these messages are secondary. 

  From top to bottom, the sign 

proposed has the Congressional designated 

name, the great seal of the United States, the 

building address and tenant agencies.  Also at 

the bottom of the sign will be the location of 

the entrances to the building, and GSA also 

proposes to have a web address at the bottom 

of the sign, so that people can access more 

information on the tenants in the building. 

  In addition to the design, GSA 

submitted proposed locations of the signs for 

the Federal Triangle.  GSA proposes to 

construct 26 building identification signs, 

indicated on the map by green dots.  The 

proposed locations are at the corners of the 

building. 

  Most of the sign locations are 
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where the current building signage is located. 

 Only two locations do not have existing 

signs.  These are circled in red.  The 

National Archives Building and the Wilson 

Building are not included in the plan, because 

they are not managed by GSA.   

  Staff supports the replacement of 

the ribbon signs located throughout the 

Federal Triangle due to their poor condition, 

as well as supports the creation of a unified 

signage program for GSA buildings.  We have 

reviewed the sign design and recommend that 

the Commission comment favorably on the 

concept design. 

  The monochromatic scheme and 

height are similar to what the Commission 

recently approved for the Mall pylon, and the 

content hierarchy is similar to the signs 

approved for Judiciary Square. 

  We note that the design is similar 

to the sign approved for the Department of 

Labor in 2005, in terms of signage height and 
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coloring.  GSA has reevaluated the content 

hierarchy since the Department of Labor 

signage was approved. 

  While we support the replacement 

of the Federal Triangle signs, we question 

whether the current sign locations are 

optimal.  Therefore, we are recommending that 

the Commission not approve the sign locations 

at this time, and encourages GSA to reevaluate 

the sign locations. 

  In this evaluation, GSA should 

analyze all locations and content of existing 

signs in the Federal Triangle, including the 

building facade, non-GSA signage and other 

site signage, such as entrance signs.  The 

evaluation should examine the potential to 

remove existing signs to declutter the Federal 

Triangle, and to analyze the best sign 

locations based on existing signage. 

  GSA should also evaluate the 

future projects in the Federal Triangle, such 

as the National Aquarium project and the 
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Federal Triangle Heritage Trail signs, so that 

sign locations are not conflicting with future 

programming. 

  Staff notes that we met with GSA 

last week about the sign locations, and they 

have agreed to continue to work with staff, 

CFA, and the D.C. SHPO on location as the 

project moves forward.   

  The next few slides will 

illustrate why the existing sign locations may 

not be optimal.  As you can see in the 

pictures, signage is needed at the entrance of 

the buildings, and oftentimes the tenant 

agencies will put up temporary signage.  An 

option worth exploring is the placement of 

signs at the building entrances, rather than 

at the corners, so that extra signage could be 

removed. 

  For the Old Post Office Building, 

signage identifying the federal tenant of the 

building might be best located near the 

entrance that accesses these entities, rather 
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than at the Pennsylvania Avenue entrance of 

the building, which accesses public amenities 

such as the food court and the Tower tour. 

  Before you is the approved concept 

design for the National Aquarium.  The site 

diagram indicates that the Aquarium proposes 

to building public art in the area that GSA 

proposes to place a building sign.  Further 

exploration with future site programming 

should be conducted. 

  With that, the executive director 

recommends that the Commission comment 

favorably on the concept design for the 

building identification signs in the Federal 

Triangle, with the exception of the proposed 

signage location, and recommends that GSA 

continue to work with NCPC staff, the 

Commission on Fine Arts and the District of 

Columbia state historic preservation officer, 

 to reevaluate the proposed signage locations. 

  This evaluation should consider 

the location, content of all existing and 
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planned signage, including agency 

identification incorporated into the facades 

of buildings, the new exterior signs at the 

National Archives, the District of Columbia 

blue wayfinding signs, and the future signage 

for the relocated National Aquarium and 

Federal Triangle Heritage Trail, and further 

notes that while the project is for the 

Federal Triangle, GSA intends to implement the 

signage to all its buildings in the National 

Capital Region, and eventually nationally, and 

supports the development of a unified signage 

design for all federal buildings throughout 

the National Capital Region. 

  Mr. Chairman, that concludes my 

presentation.  I'd be happy to answer any 

questions, as well as there are 

representatives from Gensler, GSA's design 

team, to answer any specific questions you may 

have. 

[INSERT - FEDERAL TRIANGLE] 
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  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Thank you, Ms. 

Kelly, very much.  Are there comments among 

Commission members, questions?  Mr. Provancha. 

  MR. PROVANCHA:  Does the comment 

include -- first of all, let me start with 

compliments to the staff on an excellent 

report and good analysis, and excellent 

recommendations. 

  Just to clarify, it appears that 

there's about three different types of signs. 

 There's building identification signs, 

there's visitor information signs and then 

there's signs that are on, attached to the 

exterior of the building that typically 

identifies the original or principal occupant. 

  It appears that this demonstration 

project in the Triangle is more narrowly 

focused just on the identification signs.  Is 

that correct? 

  MS. KELLY:  Correct. 

  MR. PROVANCHA:  So that would, if 

you will, while a step in the right direction 
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is standardization and, as is proposed, we're 

still going to have disconnects, if you will. 

 We'll have different colored signs, different 

lettering, different fonts, different 

materials and so forth.  But this is a step in 

the right direction. 

  One of the things that we would be 

interested in or have a question about would 

be if there would also be, along with the 

standardized locations for these signs.  If, 

for example, if we were to replace, in kind, 

at the current place where some of these are 

installed, they're not accessible to folks 

that are visually impaired. 

  Is there any plan to also the 

standardize the location, so that they would 

be accessible to the visually impaired, and 

also have Braille elements incorporated? 

  MS. KELLY:  The plan was to look 

at each building individually, as the sign 

package came in. 

  MR. PROVANCHA:  Okay.  I would 
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assume, again, putting on my 

operator/maintainer hat, that the signs that 

are proposed are readily available, they're 

durable, they're easily installed, they're 

easily maintained, they're weather-resistant. 

 All that analysis has been completed? 

  MS. KELLY:  Yes. 

  MR. PROVANCHA:  Okay.  Economics. 

 Well, we have almost all the buildings, as 

you pointed out, with the exception of two, 

currently have existing signs. 

  Are we talking -- what's the rough 

order of magnitude, the cost estimate for this 

project?  I'm trying to look at economics.  If 

we have the existing signs in every place 

except for two buildings, I'm not, clearly 

don't want to manage GSA's budget, but our 

agency is in a very austere and conservative 

economic environment. 

  Can we afford to invest in signage 

at this time, as opposed to operations and 

maintenance, other higher priority 
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initiatives?   

  MS. KELLY:  It is my understanding 

that the signs are about $800 apiece.  If Pat 

wants to come up and talk about them. 

  MR. PROVANCHA:  Sounds like you 

got a good idea. 

  MS. DANIELS:  Pat Daniels, GSA.  

I'm the project exec on this, working with 

Gensler.  We had this looked into.  The signs 

are about 6,000 apiece. 

  We have already budgeted for the 

Federal Triangle.  As we move down, we're 

hoping that we will be able to bring the price 

down.  But we think it's very reasonable for 

such a large monument sign. 

  They are extraordinarily durable. 

 We know that taking care of these things, 

agencies change and everything.  We can change 

the face right in the shop, bring it out to 

the site, remove the one that's on there, and 

put the other one on without a day going by, 

and having anybody down for -- a monument sign 
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down for a day. 

  So we think the price is 

reasonable, fabrication can be done within 

private sector of the Federal prison system.  

It's rather simple, and we hope to move 

forward with it, Federal Triangle. 

  MR. PROVANCHA:  Okay.  Much more 

than satisfactory responses.  Thank you very 

much.  I appreciate that. 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Thank you.  Mr. 

Miller? 

  MR. MILLER:  Yes.  I wanted to 

commend the GSA and the staff, for trying to 

bring some uniformity to what is currently a 

pretty hodgepodge situation there.  Seeing 

this visual presentation today did raise a 

question in my mind about one of the concepts 

though, that I hadn't picked up on earlier. 

  Maybe if you go back to Slide 5, I 

think that that was the one, and that is -- 

making the thing that's going to be largest 

uniform concept between all the signs is the 
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address.  In looking at the -- when people are 

looking for the courts, they want to see the 

courts.   

  They really don't care that it's 

on 400 4th Street, I don't think.  The post 

office does, but and if the Department of 

Labor sign to the right showed 400, is that 

400 Constitution Avenue, in the big bolding, 

and Labor's reduced to some smaller type, I 

think that's -- 

  I'm questioning whether that's the 

way we really want to go.  I realize these are 

nine foot signs, so that the District of 

Columbia courts isn't going to be that small. 

 But maybe you've test-marketed this and put, 

I understand the rationale for having 

uniformity, and the changing of the -- just 

hearing the comment of how easy it is to 

change the face, if the Congressional name 

does change, you can change it quickly. 

  MS. WRIGHT:  I'm going to let Beth 

Reddy (ph) from Gensler talk about the design 
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piece.  On a very functional level, we have 

many buildings that have multiple tenants, and 

we are going to leave with the address or we 

would like to -- believe me, we have wrestled 

with this. 

  Because in part, because of the 

way people navigate today.  We want to be able 

to connect with a mobile app, which we are 

developing, which is going to give us the 

apparatus for wayfinding information, for 

interpretation information. 

  It's green, because we won't be 

printing up brochures in books with 

architectural history, art history, 

accessibility information for tourists, as 

well as people who live here, a whole sector 

of activity that GSA used to pursue with some 

vigor, which has been a little bit fallen by 

the wayside.  It will be cheaper, easier and 

sustainable for us to do again. 

  But as far as the signs are 

concerned, it has to do not only with the 
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graphic design of the sign, but the hierarchy 

of information, the way people actually 

navigate.  I hear you.  We have plenty of 

buildings that are single tenant and known as, 

you know, the Department of Labor, Department 

of Justice. 

  But there are a lot of buildings 

that have multiple tenants, and that became a 

problem.  Beth, do you want to talk about the 

design conversations we had? 

  MS. REDDY:  I think you answered 

th question pretty well.  I'm Beth Reddy with 

Gensler.  The only thing that I would add is 

while we designed the sign to easily be 

replaced if a tenant changed or if a 

Congressionally appointed name, you know, 

occurred, we never intended for them to be 

replaced on purpose, you know. 

  So we chose the address because it 

really is the only thing that won't ever 

change.  So that's kind of why we had the 

address as the primary message on the face of 
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the sign. 

  MR. MILLER:  I appreciate the 

explanation.  I appreciate the explanation. 

  (Laughter.) 

  MR. PROVANCHA:  On buildings where 

you only have a single federal agency as the 

tenants, would not be permitted to have their 

agency seal on the -- 

  MS. REDDY:  Not the agency seal, 

no.  Just the great seal. 

  MR. PROVANCHA:  Okay. 

  MS. WRIGHT:  Experience tells us 

that if we give our building managers options, 

sooner or usually sooner rather than later, 

these options turn into visual chaos.  The 

idea is to establish firmly a visual identity 

program, so that if you are -- that it's 

instantly recognizable as a federal building. 

  What we'd dearly love to do is 

lead the way for all of our federal partners 

to sign on to something similar, not so that 

we can have just so many bronze pylons all 
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over the city, but it's -- all you have to do 

is go down Pennsylvania Avenue to see that 

it's -- we're proliferating. 

  So the staff's and CFA said the 

same thing.  We are very much aware of that 

issue too, which is integration with all of 

the other sign programs in the city. 

  So it had been our intention, or 

our expectation that we would return for each 

location for approval by the Commission for 

exact locations, because that will vary from 

building to building. 

  MR. PROVANCHA:  One more question, 

follow-on question on the scope.  Intended to 

be a national program or a regional?  The 

report in one place says national and the 

other one says regional. 

  MS. WRIGHT:  Well, we're thinking 

big.  Go big or go home.  So we're starting in 

Federal Triangle because the Triangle's really 

become sort of a laboratory for a lot of 

things that we're doing right about now, and 
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we figured as long as we were getting in 

somebody's way, we'd do it all at once. 

  Then we will move quickly out to 

the remainder of NCR, and then it is the 

Commissioner of Public Building's intent to go 

national.  So that's the plan. 

  MR. HART:  I have a question.  On 

the location of the signs relative to the 

buildings, are these two-sided signs? 

  MS. KELLY:  Yes. 

  MR. HART:  So they're going to sit 

perpendicular to the face of the building? 

  MS. KELLY:  At the corners, they 

would not be perpendicular.  But we're still 

evaluating, you know, locations of buildings 

and signage orientation as we move forward. 

  MR. HART:  So that will be a later 

element.  Thank you. 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Mr. May. 

  MR. MAY:  Just so I understand 

what is before us today, I guess did GSA 

initially propose all of the specific 



 

 

 NEAL R. GROSS 
 COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS 
 1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W. 
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C.  20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com 

 
 
 125 

locations and you're recommending that they 

not be approved, and that's where we are right 

now? 

  MS. KELLY:  Correct. 

  MR. MAY:  Okay.  But you are 

suggesting that we approve the specific 

concept design and generally how they would be 

placed, with a more specific review to follow 

of the individual buildings?  Is that how 

we'll see it, or will we see it -- will we see 

another version of this with all of these dots 

in the right place? 

  MS. KELLY:  Correct.  The Federal 

Triangle will come together as one package.  

Later, individual buildings outside the 

Federal Triangle will come in separate. 

  MR. MAY:  Well, I certainly 

appreciate the importance of improving the 

signage and having some greater consistency in 

reducing the clutter.  We've been working on 

that effort ourselves, and I think that it 

makes great sense that we'd be talking about 
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trying to establish a uniform kind of signage 

system for not just GSA-controlled buildings, 

but federal buildings, particularly within the 

District, within the region, nationally.   

  I guess at a certain point it 

becomes a little bit less, maybe it's a little 

bit less significant.  But I think it's fine 

if it goes that route. 

  I think that -- I do  think there 

is a distinction between federal buildings 

that are primarily public in nature like the 

Archives, which I think does, there's a 

circumstance there that calls for more unique 

signage and not simply something that has the 

street address on it.  

  Not that that's on the table.  

That was previously approved as something 

different.  I can't say that I really love 

what was done originally, but I think the idea 

that there would be some exceptions to the 

overall policy when you're talking about a 

building like Archives or like the Reagan 
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Building, where it's that, you have that very 

significant public component, because not 

everybody that's looking for the Archives is 

going to be looking for the standard 

government signage, I guess. 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Other questions 

or comments? 

  (No response.) 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Hearing none, is 

there a motion on the EDR as presented? 

  MR. PROVANCHA:  Motion to approve. 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  It's been moved 

and -- 

  MR. HART:  Second. 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Seconded.  All 

in favor say aye? 

  (Chorus of ayes.) 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Opposed, no. 

  (No response.) 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  The ayes have 

it.  Thank you, Ms. Kelly.  

ITEMS 5C AND 5D - FORT BELVOIR NORTH/SOUTH 
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  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Then Ms. Kelly 

remains, because Items 5C and 5D are going to 

be presented together.  However, we will have 

separate votes, one for 5C and one for 5D.   

  5C is the new Administration 

building for the Office of the Chief of Army 

Reserve, and 5D is the new administration 

building for the United States Army Legal 

Services Administration and Army Audit Agency. 

 Ms. Kelly? 

  MS. KELLY:  Good afternoon, again. 

 The Department of the Army has submitted tow 

administration buildings on the main post at 

Fort Belvoir for preliminary review.  One 

building is to house the Office of the Chief 

of Army Reserve, which I will refer to as 

OCAR, and the other building is to house the 

United States Army Legal Services 

Administration and the Army Audit Agency, 

which I will refer to as USALSA/AAA.   

  As the chairman says, these 

projects will be presented in one 
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presentation, due to the similarity and the 

executive director's recommendation, and the 

close proximity of the projects to one 

another. 

  The Base Realignment and Closure 

of 2005 will move approximately 20,000 

personnel to Fort Belvoir by September 2011.  

As part of BRAC Recommendations 5 and 132, 

USALSA/AAA and OCAR will move approximately 

850 personnel from New Jersey and leased space 

in North Virginia to Fort Belvoir. 

  Fort Belvoir main post is divided 

by Route 1 into a north post and south post.  

The Army proposes to place OCAR on the north 

post, the site seen in red, and proposes to 

place USALSA/AAA on the south post, seen in 

the map in yellow. 

  In close proximity to both sites 

is the Woodlawn Historic District, which 

includes multiple historic buildings.  The 

Army proposes to place OCAR on Goethals Road, 

in between Black and Constitution, on a 10 
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acre site. 

  The site was previously occupied 

by World War II era wooden structures that 

have been demolished within the last ten 

years.  However, parking for these structures 

remains.  

  Surrounding the sites are barrack, 

park and parade field uses, as well as 

undeveloped land.  The Army proposes to build 

the new administration building for USALSA/AAA 

 along Gunston Road, in between 3rd and 4th 

Streets, on a five acre unimproved site. 

  Surrounding uses include office 

and associated parking, as well as undeveloped 

land and the Audit Skills Center.  You can 

also see in the area the new community 

hospital, which is a BRAC project as well.  

  The proposed OCAR building is a 

three-story approximately 88,000 square foot 

building that will house 433 employees.  Here 

you can see the proposed site layout for the 

OCAR building.  Proposed for the site are 
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surface parking lots with 304 parking spaces. 

  Parking is provided for 60 percent 

of employees and for visitors.  The Army also 

proposed to add additional landscaping to the 

eastern and southeastern section of the site, 

to limit views of the building from the 

historic district. 

  The Army proposes to building a 

four-story, 97,000 square foot building to 

accommodate 420 employees of USALSA/AAA.  The 

building will include an emergency operation 

center, a courtroom which you can see here, a 

data processing center and offices.   

  The building's formal entrance 

will face Gunston Road.  However, the main 

entrance is likely to be the east entrance, as 

this faces the proposed parking structure, and 

there is an entrance to the courtroom.  At 

this entrance, the Army proposes to build a 

courtyard with decorative paving and seating. 

  Also proposed for the site is a 

114,000 square foot four level parking garage 
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that will provide 348 parking spaces.  Parking 

will be provided for 60 percent of staff, as 

well as for visitors.   

  Staff has completed its analysis 

of the proposed preliminary site and building 

plans for the new administration buildings, 

and encourages the Army to submit additional 

information regarding the transportation and 

environmental elements of the comp plan, 

reevaluate building and site design elements, 

including pedestrian access around the site, 

and evaluate Fairfax County's comments, 

particularly the comment regarding views from 

the Woodlawn Historic District. 

  Due to the time line of BRAC 

projects, for past BRAC projects at Fort 

Belvoir, the Army has submitted individual 

transportation management plans, while the 

master plan and associated TMP are being 

updated.  The Army has agreed to submit a TMP 

for these projects as well at final 

submission. 
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  While the Army intends to provide 

parking for only 60 percent of personnel at 

each site, due to the lack of an improved 

installation master plan and associated TMP 

that reflects BRAC at Fort Belvoir, we do not 

have information on the current parking ratio 

for the installation as a whole. 

  Therefore, within the TMP an 

analysis for parking within 2,000 feet of the 

building site should be carried out, to 

determine if adding parking to these buildings 

will provide parking within an area that 

exceeds the transportation's element parking 

ratio of 1 to 1.5 or roughly 66 percent of 

employees. 

  2,000 feet is defined in the 

comprehensive plan as a reasonable walking 

distance.  Until the TMP is completed, staff 

is recommending that the Commission defer 

action on the proposed parking.  Staff will 

use the TMP and the parking analysis in the 

next submission to analyze conformance with 
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the transportation element.  

  Regarding the environmental 

element, we request that the Army submit 

additional information on how the projects 

will meet the storm water requirements of 

Section 438 of the Energy Independence and 

Security Act of 2007, which in the D.C. region 

means the Army will need to handle a 1.71 inch 

rainfall event at the site. 

  Also, we also request additional 

information on how the project is complying 

with the Department of Army's procedures to 

implement Executive Order 13514, so that staff 

can complete its analysis of the project for 

conformance with the environmental element in 

the comp plan. 

  Regarding additional project 

elements, staff encourages the Army  to 

evaluate constructing sidewalks on all sides 

of the project sites, and evaluate crosswalks 

at intersections for better pedestrian 

connections.  We also recommend that the Army 
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evaluate the opportunity to improve the 

condition of Black Road, to minimize 

impervious surface.  

  Regarding USALSA/AAA, the Army 

should evaluate the design of the formal 

entrance, so that the entrance of the building 

is more prominent, as well as evaluate 

vegetative wall plantings for the parking 

garage, to provide visual and environmental 

benefits.  

  Fairfax County has provided 

comments on the proposed buildings, and staff 

encourages the Army to evaluate all the 

county's comments, in particular the county's 

comments regarding tree planting, to limit 

views from the Woodlawn Historic District. 

  As the chairman mentioned, I 

presented these projects in one presentation. 

 However, the Commission will need to take two 

separate actions.  Therefore, I will go 

through recommendations separately. 

  Regarding OCAR, the executive 
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director recommends that the Commission 

approve the preliminary site and building 

plans for OCAR, and defer action on the 

proposed parking until a transportation 

management plan is submitted.  The TMP should 

include an analysis of parking capacity within 

2,000 feet of the building site. 

  Recommends that in the continued 

development of the project, the Army evaluate 

the potential to add landscaping on site and 

on adjacent sites in an effort to screen the 

building from nearby historic district and 

properties. 

  Enhance pedestrian circulation by 

adding sidewalks on Goethals Road and Black 

Road, and to add crosswalks at potential 

street crossings; evaluate the opportunity for 

the aesthetic improvements to Black Road by 

constructing a curb and minimizing impervious 

surfaces; and address the comments submitted 

by Fairfax County, Virginia on November 4th. 

  Further recommends that the 
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Commission request that in the next submission 

to the Commission, the Army submit information 

on how the project conforms to the Department 

of Army's procedures to implement Executive 

Order 13514, and the Energy Independence and 

Security Act of 2007, in particular Section 

438 on storm water management, and notes that 

the projects are to comply with BRAC 

recommendations. 

  For the USALSA/AAA building, the 

executive director recommends that the 

Commission approve the preliminary site and 

building plans, and like the OCAR building, 

defer action on the proposed parking until a 

TMP is submitted with a parking capacity 

analysis. 

  Specifically for USALSA, the 

executive director recommends that the 

Commission -- recommends that in the continued 

development of the project, the Army redesign 

the Gunston Road entrance to make it more 

prominent, enhance pedestrian circulation by 
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extending sidewalks along 4th Street and 

adding crosswalks at potential street 

crossings; explore the use of vegetative walls 

on the proposed parking structure; address the 

comments submitted by Fairfax County; and add 

additional landscaping along Route 1 to screen 

potential views to the building from the 

Woodlawn Historic District. 

  Further requests that the Army 

submit the same information regarding 

Executive Order 13514 and EISA, and notes that 

this is also a BRAC project.  Mr. Chairman, 

that concludes my presentation. 

[INSERT - FORT BELVOIR, NORTH POST] 
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[INSERT - FORT BELVOIR, SOUTH POST] 
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  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Thank you, Ms. 

Kelly.  Before we go into discussions on each 

individual item and then have individual 

votes, there are representatives here from the 

Army who may like to address us on issues.  

Mr. Chris Landgraf is here? 

  MR. LANDGRAF:  We were coming 

primarily just to respond if any questions 

were asked. 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Oh, okay. 

  MR. LANDGRAF:  But to say that we 

appreciate the opportunity to discuss before 

the Commission, and we appreciate the 

executive director's recommendation for the 

preliminary approval. 

  We do anticipate a draft of the 

TMP next week for evaluation in our office, 

and then we will try to turn around quickly to 

get copies to NCPC for evaluation prior to our 

final submittal, to ensure that we're hitting 

the goals as requested in this determination. 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Okay.  Thank you 
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very much.  Turning to Item 5C for questions 

and discussion, 5C is the Office of the Chief 

of Army Reserve.  Are there questions for Ms. 

Kelly or discussion on that particular 

project?  Mr. Provancha? 

  MR. PROVANCHA:  A couple of 

questions.  Thank you.  Ms. Kelly was very 

helpful in clarification.  One of those was I 

would call it "the code interpretation."  

  There's some language in one of 

the criteria about the requirement for TMPs, 

for buildings more than or less than 500 

personnel.  So our discussion with her, I 

think, was very helpful to figure out which 

statute applied, and confirmed that it does 

apply in this particular situation because 

there is no current TMP. 

  The BRAC projects, as you know, 

are on a very tight time line and subject to 

review all the way up to include Congress.  

Can we get confirmation from Mr. Landgraf that 

the deferral of the TMP issue does not impact 
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the construction and the completion? 

  I just want to get confirmation 

that we won't have a building constructed and 

nobody can park anywhere near it, so the 

building is not fully functional by September 

11th. 

  MR. LANDGRAF:  With this motion to 

approve preliminary site plan, we do not 

believe that this will delay, because parking, 

as we continue.  The construction on these 

were slightly delayed because of the fact that 

we were looking to do temporary modular 

facilities, and then we finally decided to do 

permanent facilities. 

  MR. PROVANCHA:  Permanent 

facilities, right. 

  MR. LANDGRAF:  So we're moving 

forward, and we've actually just gotten plan 

sets and everything to that point where we're 

ready to go.  So it shouldn't actually delay 

it.  Again, it will come down to a 

reevaluation on the Army's part, because we 
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were using 1320 for a distance away, a quarter 

mile, which is our standard planning practice. 

  So the 2,000 feet, we're going to 

have to go back and kind of revamp just a 

little bit more, to see if that's going to be 

of any additional impact to the parking 

analysis  But preliminary, it looks like it's 

not going to change it dramatically. 

  So we think this will still keep 

it on track and unfortunately, Ms. Kelly 

probably thinks we talk to her too much, but 

we try to work with her as much as possible to 

keep things moving, all understanding the time 

line for BRAC. 

  MR. PROVANCHA:  And the Army is 

receptive to the other NCPC recommendations 

about prominent building entrance and 

additional sidewalks, crosswalks, vegetative 

screening and so forth? 

  MR. LANDGRAF:  I think actually 

some of our initial comments to the -- 

  MR. PROVANCHA:  Because typically 



 

 

 NEAL R. GROSS 
 COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS 
 1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W. 
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C.  20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com 

 
 
 144 

those would be outside the scope. 

  MR. LANDGRAF:  I think those were 

actually some of the internal comments from 

the installation as well.  So I believe, I 

haven't actually been fully versed in the last 

review, but I believe most of those comments 

have actually been addressed already, if not 

as part of these projects specifically, and 

that may have brought up one of the overlooked 

issues is what is part of our BRAC 

development? 

  Some of the sidewalk and crosswalk 

areas are being done as part of our 

infrastructure development anyway, and so they 

may actually be covered, just weren't 

submitted with these site plans.  So it may 

have been a discrepancy or cross-purposes. 

  MR. PROVANCHA:  These projects 

remain front and center on the radar scopes of 

many of the senior folks in the Department of 

Defense.  As an example, this Friday at 

Belvoir, there's what they call the 



 

 

 NEAL R. GROSS 
 COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS 
 1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W. 
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C.  20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com 

 
 
 145 

Installation Planning Board meeting that's 

going to be chaired by Major General Horst out 

of the Military District of Washington, who 

Belvoir installations and others fall under 

his area of responsibility. 

  So it is getting attention at 

senior levels, which is a good thing.  Thank 

you. 

  MR. LANDGRAF:  Thank you. 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Other questions? 

 Mr. Hart. 

  MR. HART:  Is there an approved 

master plan for Fort Belvoir? 

  MS. KELLY:  It was approved in 

1993. 

  MR. HART:  Are these projects in 

conformance with that master plan? 

  MS. KELLY:  For the USALSA/AAA, 

it's in conformance with the land use.  For 

OCAR, it's inconsistent with the land use, and 

that's why we referred it out to Fairfax 

County for review.  Also the EA analyzed the 
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change in land use to -- 

  MR. HART:  Is there a TMP for the 

entire base? 

  MS. KELLY:  No. 

  MR. HART:  I find it difficult to 

approve of a TMP for an individual building on 

a base that doesn't have a bigger strategy, 

because TMP requires a framework for managing 

traffic, and it would be odd, if not 

impossible, to implement piecemeal TMPs. 

  I note that Fairfax County had 

some comments.  I don't see them included.  

Could you characterize their comments? 

  MS. KELLY:  They should be 

attached to the EDR in the back.  They had, 

submitted comments mainly about the historic 

resource, effects on the historic resource, as 

well as they did submit transportation 

comments, and noted that their review would 

not be complete until the TMP was reviewed by 

them. 

  So mainly two things to include 
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into the TMP, as well as comments on sidewalks 

and crosswalks.   

  MR. HART:  Another item is in the 

Army Audit Agency's letter, it indicates a 

construction start date of November 2010.  

Have these buildings started construction? 

  MS. KELLY:  They shouldn't have 

started construction, no. 

  MR. HART:  With a completion date 

of September 2011.  So it assumes what it 

means by deadline. 

  MR. LANDGRAF:  That's the BRAC 

deadline, sir, September 15th, 2011, and these 

buildings will be coming in hopefully in 

August of 2011, so that we can move people 

into the buildings in September of 2011. 

  MR. HART:  It seems like you've 

given us a very short fuse on this.   

  MR. LANDGRAF:  Again, because of 

the -- we were originally evaluated in the 

BRAC EIS as modular facilities for both of 

these agencies, and the transportation 
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analysis that was done for them included them 

as being temporary modulars, to be followed on 

by permanent construction after the BRAC.  

  But it was -- on further 

evaluation for cost savings and life cycle, it 

was deemed that it would actually, even with 

an accelerated construction schedule, save 

money overall to build them as permanent 

facilities now, versus having done the modular 

construction and then building the permanent 

facilities after. 

  It also took down the amount, 

total amount of impervious surface we would 

have created by having a modular facility and 

then a permanent facility at the same time 

under construction.  So we've actually reduced 

the overall impacts by going to the permanent 

construction. 

  But yes, it is a -- and we 

apologize.  It's a very short turnaround for 

everybody, but because of the evaluation that 

was done, some of it at a higher level than 
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ours, when we got back down to it, this is 

kind of where we are.  So -- 

  MR. HART:  Thank you. 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Ms. Tregoning. 

  MS. TREGONING:  Thank you.  I just 

had a couple of comments about this.  I 

certainly agree with Commissioner Hart's 

observation, that a transportation management 

plan for a single structure, without the 

context of a plan for the whole facility, is 

not that helpful. 

  So I'd like to encourage that -- 

encourage the Army to submit for the entire 

site, and not just for individual structures. 

 I would also observe and commend the Army for 

doing LEED-certified buildings, and I'm not 

sure what's motivating the Army to do a LEED 

building. 

  Presumably, it has something to do 

with the Energy Independence Act and the 

Federal Executive Order 13514, but also 

perhaps maybe a motivation that this would be 
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better and more enjoyable for the personnel 

that are serving in those buildings. 

  In terms of energy use, the 

transportation components of, you know, of 

getting to and from Fort Belvoir and then the 

travel that might be associated with what has 

to happen on the base, that's a very 

significant source of energy use.  

  I would think that, you know, the 

military of all agencies has the most to gain, 

you know, by a more energy independent future. 

 Certainly, most of the conflicts around the 

world seem to be related to energy, and 

leadership on the part of the Army and the 

defense agencies would certainly be very much 

appreciated. 

  We're starting to see it -- I mean 

we're not just starting to see it.  GSA, you 

know, as an owner and operator of buildings, 

is, you know, the most progressive, I would 

have to say, in the entire country. 

  We would love to see that kind of 
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leadership from Fort Belvoir, from the Army, 

from the military, and not neglect that 

incredible amount of energy that's used for 

transportation. 

  We talked a little bit about bike-

sharing.  Fairfax County is not yet part of 

the regional bike sharing program, but has 

expressed an interest.  Fort Belvoir seems 

like an ideal location, you know, to pilot 

such a program, where a lot of the trips on 

the base could probably be easily accommodated 

by bicycle.  A beautiful base with not 

terribly fast-moving traffic. 

  So you know, I would suggest 

really looking hard at ways to come up with a 

creative and progressive transportation 

management plan that takes a big bite out of 

the energy use associated with transportation. 

 Thank you. 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Mr. Provancha. 

  MR. PROVANCHA:  Back to the 

question about why  the LEED for this 



 

 

 NEAL R. GROSS 
 COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS 
 1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W. 
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C.  20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com 

 
 
 152 

building.  Part of that is the DoD standard 

and criteria, the new construction of 

buildings above a size, which this building 

qualifies for.  We'd be certified ideally at 

the LEED silver level, with some deliberation, 

we'd seek even higher levels of certification. 

  The Mark Center is  seeking LEED 

gold, and the Founders Square project that's 

being built for DARPA is looking at LEED 

platinum.  We think that's a good investment 

that we'll get some return on.   

  On the issue of piecemeal 

transportation management, we concur.  But I 

think Belvoir is committed to providing, as 

part of their installation master planning, a 

comprehensive TMP.  So in lieu of and in 

preparation for, I think you're getting these 

piecemeal TMPs.   

  That being said, I think the 

recommendation that we would support and 

Belvoir is supportive and receptive to is 

deferring the action on the TMPs until they're 
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finalized, improved and then rolled into a 

comprehensive plan, subject again to the 

impact on -- a negative impact on the 

schedule, which hopefully is not the case.  

Thank you. 

  So underground garages.  Belvoir's 

in the enviable position of having available 

acreage, and just because we have available 

acreage is not necessarily a good reason to 

continue to proliferate hardscape. 

  So in the future, one of the 

things we would encourage Belvoir to do is to 

look at underground facilities, if 

supplemental parking is absolutely necessary. 

  MR. HART:  I understand that the 

installation is completing a comprehensive 

plan that would accommodate the BRAC programs. 

 I think we mentioned the 1993 installation 

master plan is -- 

  MR. PROVANCHA:  Right.  

Unfortunately, the delivery date, I'm hearing 

2012, 2011 and we will work with Belvoir to 
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accelerate that. 

  MR. HART:  Will the TMP be 

deferred until 2012?   

  MR. PROVANCHA:  I think the 

comprehensive installation TMP, Mr. Landgraf 

may have more  intel on that than I have.  

Hopefully, it could be delivered sooner than 

the master plan. 

  MR. LANDGRAF:  As part of the 

master plan, which we are currently in 

revision, we are including a transportation 

management plan that was part of the 

directives associated with the ROD from BRAC, 

and so we are including a transportation 

management plan. 

  We had a draft.  We sent the draft 

out for comments and early review, and we are 

now revising the master plan, based on those 

comments, and based on those comments, which 

included bringing BRAC to an existing 

condition, we've brought everything back up to 

date, January 2010 being our existing 
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condition, and so the TMP will include all 

BRAC activities as existing conditions, and 

the transportation management analysis will 

then be based on BRAC as an existing condition 

in all future growth, based on BRAC and its 

population as an existing condition, and all 

future growth projections based on what we 

have in our short-range and long-range 

components.  

  So we are hoping to actually have 

a draft of the short-range component at the 

end of this month, and an updated long-range 

component in January.  Yes, we're shooting for 

2011, not 2012 for the final.  The real issue 

is bringing all this back up to date and 

getting the population densities and 

everything worked out. 

  We really can't start some of the 

EIS process until we get those numbers.  So 

now that we're back on track to get to that as 

our starting point, we're hopefully going to 

start our EIS for the master plan, and that's 
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going to be the long time frame.  It takes 

about six to nine months to get the draft of 

the EIS out. 

  MR. PROVANCHA:  Belvoir's had a 

particularly challenging, I think, environment 

that they have to operate under with BRAC.  

BRAC construction in the NCR is in excess of 

$4 billion, and a lot of that is at Belvoir.  

  At one time, the population of 

Belvoir was expected to more than double, with 

the three large facilities that were 

originally intended to go to the engineering 

proving ground now referred to as Fort Belvoir 

North, the Army museum, the National 

Geospatial Agency as well as the Washington 

headquarters building, which at one time was 

to house 9,200 people. 

  So Belvoir has been particularly 

challenged, and there's clearly no way that a 

1993 master plan could anticipate decisions 

that came out of the November 2005 BRAC 

Commission.  So Belvoir, I think, is kind of 
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in a catch-up mode. 

  MR. LANDGRAF:  And the BRAC EIS 

did actually do a minor tweak, as Ms. Kelly 

mentioned, to the master plan recommendations, 

to accommodate things like OCAR and USALSA.  

And again, knowing that we had the '95 or the 

'93 master plan was our latest, we tried to 

site as many of the facilities as we could in 

areas that had previously been designated land 

use categories that were compatible. 

  OCAR was one that kind of slipped, 

mostly because of the transportation elements 

internally, and trying to put it into a spot 

that would tie more appropriately into 

infrastructure improvements that we were 

doing. 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Okay.  Hearing 

no more discussion on Item 5C, which is the 

Office of the Chief of Army Reserve, is there 

a motion on the EDR before you? 

  MS. TREGONING:  So moved. 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  It's been moved 
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and -- 

  MR. HART:  Seconded. 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  All in favor say 

aye? 

  (Chorus of ayes.) 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Opposed, no. 

  (No response.) 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  It's approved.  

On Item 5D, are there discussion or questions 

on the U.S. Army Legal Services Administration 

and Army Audit Agency?  That's Item 5D.   

  MR. HART:  Ditto all of the above. 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Mr. Hart says 

"ditto on all of that above." 

  MR. PROVANCHA:  Second.  Second 

that. 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  So I'm assuming 

there is a motion to -- is there a motion to 

approve Item 5D? 

  MR. HART:  Motion to approve. 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  It's been moved 

and it has been -- 
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  MS. TREGONING:  Second. 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Seconded.  All 

in favor of Item 5D say aye? 

  (Chorus of ayes.) 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Opposed, no. 

  (No response.) 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Item 5D is 

approved unanimously.  It's been suggested 

that we may want, before we -- thank you, Ms. 

Kelly.  Before we go into the last item, which 

is an information presentation on the 

Southwest waterfront, it's been suggested that 

we may want to take two or three minutes only, 

to go over and look at the model first, and 

then we will come right back and begin the 

information presentation. 

  So let's take about two or three 

minutes to take a look, and Mr. Dowd will be 

the cruise director, and will answer -- will 

show you the model and answer any preliminary 

questions you may have. 

  (Whereupon, a short recess was 
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taken.) 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Okay.  We can 

resume proceedings.  Item 6A is an information 

presentation on the Southwest Waterfront plan. 

 Mr. Dowd and Ms. Elizabeth Miller have been 

working quite a bit on this, with public and 

private stakeholders in the area.  Mr. Dowd 

will be presenting today. 

ITEM 6A - SOUTHWEST WATERFRONT PLAN 

  MR. DOWD:  Thank you, Mr. 

Chairman.  good afternoon, and members of the 

Commission.  Actually, what I'll simply be 

doing is introducing our information 

presentation today, with a little background. 

  The Commission was initially 

introduced to the proposed Southwest 

Waterfront development plans last month, in 

conjunction with the proposal to close Water 

Street, as you may remember. 

  Today, we're pleased to have 

Elinor Bacon, a partner in the PN Hoffman 

Madison Marquette development team for the 
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Southwest Waterfront, and members of the team 

here today, to provide the Commission with an 

information briefing on the proposed Southwest 

Waterfront development. 

  The development team requested the 

opportunity to provide the Commission with a 

more comprehensive overview of the plan 

Development, prior to submitting a zoning 

application to the city for PUD approval.  At 

which time the Commission will then have an 

opportunity to provide official comments to 

the Zoning Commission. 

  Shawn Seaman, who is the project 

director and his development team, have also 

briefed the Southwest Ecodistrict Task Force, 

 and the Commission of Fine Arts.  CFA's 

comment letter, dated November 29th, and a 

summary of the Task Force discussion on 

September 30th, have been included in your 

packet. 

  Staff has met with Shawn and 

members of the development team periodically 
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over the past several years, starting when we 

were working on the framework plan.  During 

this time, we have enjoyed a good working 

relationship and dialogue about the interface 

between the proposed Waterfront development 

and Federal interests in East Potomac Park and 

the Southwest Rectangle area.  

  Our discussions to date have 

primarily focused on the visual and physical 

connections between the Southwest Waterfront 

and 10th Street Overlook, the area most 

directly related to the work of the Southwest 

Ecodistrict Task Force. 

  The 10th Street corridor is the 

most viable link between the National Mall and 

the Southwest Waterfront, and the success of 

this connection will play a significant role 

in impacting the quality of the Southwest 

Waterfront and the Southwest Ecodistrict 

alike. 

  With that, I would like to 

introduce Elinor Bacon and Sam Eckstut, who 
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will provide today's briefing on the proposed 

Southwest Waterfront development.  That 

podium's fine.  

[INSERT - STATEMENTS RE SOUTHWEST WATERFRONT] 
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  MS. BACON:  Okay, fine. 

  MR. DOWD:  Thank you, Elinor. 

  MS. BACON:  Good afternoon.  Thank 

you, Mr. Chairman and members of the Board.  

We're delighted to be here to day to present 

to NCPC, and I am a partner in Madison -- 

Hoffman Madison Marquette, the developer for 

the Southwest Waterfront.  

  As you know, we were awarded the 

development rights in 2006, we've been working 

since that time with the city to finalize our 

land disposition agreement with all of the 

existing leaseholders, to come to agreements 

with them, with the community, with staff, 

etcetera, and now we're ready to present our 

plans. 

  I'm joined today by several of my 

colleagues.  I want to introduce Matt 

Steenhoek from PN Hoffman, Angela Sweeney from 

Madison Marquette, Stan Eckstut, our master 

planner, and Doug Smith, also master planner 

with EE&K.   
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  Shawn Seaman wanted to be here 

today with you to make this presentation, but 

yesterday his wife gave birth to two baby 

girls, twins, and so he can't be here today 

and send his greetings. 

  So we wanted to give a summary of 

the overall plan for those of you who have not 

seen it, and then to focus on the connection 

of our project with the Overlook and with 

L'Enfant Plaza, and so that is what Stan will 

be presenting. 

  Before I turn the presentation 

over to him, however, I wanted to take a 

minute to just let  you know where we are with 

regard to our project.  We intend to submit 

our PUD application at the end of this year or 

beginning of next year, and that would be the 

Stage 1 PUD application for all of the 

horizontal development. 

  We are projecting a fall approval 

of the Stage 1 PUD, at which time we would 

submit a Stage 2 PUD application for the Phase 
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1 of our development, vertical development. 

  So we intend to build in three 

phases.  It's a center section first, and then 

the section that's closest to the Tidal Basin, 

and then the final section would be the 

section that's to the other end, closest to 

the Titanic Memorial. 

  So we have been having a series of 

meetings building up to today an also to our 

submission to the PUD.  We've met with 

individual stakeholders, for instance, with 

the Arena Stage.  We've had numerous 

discussions with them, engaging them and 

making our program one that works well with 

theirs and vice-versa. 

  So there's a real synergy there 

with individual stakeholders, with community 

groups, and then finally culminating in a 

large meeting that we had at Arena Stage this 

fall, attended by more than 500 community 

people, to see the presentation and give us 

their questions. 
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  We have an active website, 

www.swdcwaterfront.com, where we have posted 

our plans and also questions and answers.  We 

hope you will look at that, and so now I would 

like just to turn over the presentation to 

Stan Eckstut.  Thank you. 

  MR. ECKSTUT:  Thank you very much. 

 Since I can hardly speak, you will have a 

much shorter presentation that you normally 

get, which I understand is one of the 

objectives, is to be as brief as possible.  So 

with that, let me first show probably the 

summary of it all is on this one page. 

  There is indeed a comprehensive 

redevelopment of the waterfront, both land and 

water.  There is a definite water plan, as 

well as a land plan, and this goes about 

bringing the city fabric to the Waterfront, 

and it's to do it in a way where we're 

reflecting as much as we can on the District 

and the qualities of people that live and work 

here, as well as obviously integrating the 
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Federal City into this plan. 

  We are very much focused on being 

a place that's used all the time, seven days a 

week, day and night, all seasons, and it's 

trying to be as normal a kind of city as we 

possibly can. 

  I just want to point out that as 

on the model, it's hard to -- I guess this 

laser is not working, it's this part that's 

right up against the water edge that is the 

focus of today. 

  Many of you may know, some of you 

may not, as we discovered, there was indeed a 

very vibrant, active city at the waterfront, 

not too far back.  It was very much a busy 

working waterfront, lots of vessels moving in 

and out and associated land site development 

with a major wharf that runs alongside all 

these head house buildings. 

  This wharf was a great public 

place, and our hope is to, thank you.  You'd 

think I know how to use this.  Here we go.  
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Okay, great.  So this wharf was indeed the 

great public street that really brought the 

city and the water together, and one of our 

main themes is to recreate a wharf, a 

different wharf like most European cities have 

changed their wharfs into places that people 

really enjoy today, not like the warehouse 

districts of the past. 

  The key to this entire waterfront, 

as most great waterfronts of the world, is the 

activity in the water, not what's on the land. 

 It's what makes a waterfront unique.  I know 

it seems obvious, but the truth is most cities 

do not have water plans.  Baltimore is one of 

the few cities, certainly in America, that has 

benefitted from decades of water plans, and 

that's what's been behind all their great 

success. 

  We have learned a great deal from 

them, and we have come up with a very 

ambitious water plan.  I'm not going to 

present it to you in detail.  I think probably 
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the most important thing is that while we have 

significant marinas today that will remain but 

get consolidated and expanded by coming out 

deeper into the channel, we have introduced, 

like Baltimore and other great cities, a much 

more commercial harbor, transient harbor, 

appealing really to many people who do not own 

boats, who get out for all kinds of tours and 

bring in a lot more history and be able to 

have ferries and bring visiting ships from 

around the world. 

  That's what makes a great 

waterfront destination, in addition to the 

marinas that are there, and in addition to the 

dinner boat business that is there and the 

police pier.  We have a lot of activity going 

on.  There's probably about 20 different types 

of water planning elements that go into this, 

and it's the beginning of how we redeveloped 

all this. 

  It has emerged on the land side 

into a plan of streets and blocks.  All the 
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parcels refer to blocks where development 

would go.  But the key to all this is the 

wharf along the water.  Much of it is shown in 

white and key parts of it, which are probably 

the most important for vessels, are the orange 

color. 

  They are a lower elevation.  If 

you walk along the lower part of the promenade 

today, that's around elevation eight.  That's 

the elevation of where we want to maintain a 

wharf to get on and off the larger commercial 

vessels. 

  The white part is the upper part 

of the promenade today, and that looks out 

over the marina and you're able to be high 

enough that you actually can look out over the 

vessels.  This is not a place we want the 

public to get down onto the boats.  These are 

the private boats that are security. 

  So the promenade remains up in the 

upper level, and then it comes back down to 

get to the dinner boat business and police 
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pier, etcetera.  So the wharf goes up and down 

a bit.  But the most important part of this 

wharf is that the current one, the promenade 

is around 40 feet; it's on two levels.  In 

order to make a great public place, it's on 

one level.  It's 60 feet wide typically.  It's 

a little smaller at the fish market end. 

  We are indeed bringing the street 

car, the proposed street car of the city's 

extended transit fabric onto the waterfront 

itself, to reinforce that this is a public 

street, a great place that's operating all the 

time.  

  It's a place where cars will be 

able to come out when there aren't a lot of 

people.  We look to this kind of example of 

Pike Place and other successful destinations, 

where local people thrive, want to go to their 

waterfronts.  But they're willing to mix with 

convenience of cars.  Cars can't move very 

fast.  Pedestrians dominate. 

  We see this as a major part of the 
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waterfront, except when it gets really cold.  

Fewer pedestrians, maybe more cars.  Lots of 

holidays, weekends, evenings, probably no 

cars.  Too many pedestrian.  So it will be a 

traffic-managed wharf, as great public streets 

have to be. 

  Vehicular circulation, the primary 

red lines are Maine Avenue.  That's where most 

of the traffic will be.  We're using the wharf 

as only a local way of really getting to and 

from all the piers and vessels, and maybe the 

restaurants on the water's edge. 

  Most of the traffic will remain on 

Maine, and will come through a series of small 

streets to their parking, which is all below 

grade, and for service.  We do have dropoffs 

on key public places that I'll describe, but 

they're only dropoffs.  There's no entrances 

to garages, no curb cuts, no visible service 

entrances on any of the great public places. 

  Maine Avenue is today a street 

with curbs that allow us to introduce the 
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street car and the shared lane, both 

directions.  The median in the middle remains. 

  The trees will remain.  We'll have 

to add some infill, and on the water side, the 

land, the property will be set back 12 feet so 

that we're able to accommodate a bike lane and 

incorporate the city's bike planning into the 

entire length of the waterfront. 

  But we're able to do this within 

the existing curbs and we can move forward 

quickly.  This is mixed use throughout all the 

colors.  You'll find constantly mixing.  Blue 

is office, yellow is residential, pale green 

is hotel.  At both ends, we see an anchoring 

of culture.   

  The Arena Stage clearly has become 

the anchor and it exists.  We're looking to a 

host of entertainment.  We see a, and are 

planning now for a 4,000 seat music hall that 

will be part of it.  The cultural uses are a 

key part of the plan's requirements, and all 

of this at this end is particularly important, 
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just like the water plan, as appealing to many 

more visitors.   

  Not necessarily tourists first, 

but people who live here first.  So it's a big 

public marketplace, along with the fish 

market, along with the music hall and all the 

visiting vessels.  We're also showing, which I 

forgot to point out in the water plan, we have 

a day pier and a transient pier, but we have a 

larger footprint, which we reserve for a 

future national maritime museum, should that 

ever get itself going and authorized and 

funded. 

  So that we're contributing again 

to the west end being the place where it's the 

most transient, probably open the longest 

hours, the most visitors, the most mix, and as 

you move closer to the east, it gets more and 

more quieter, a little like Arena Stage.  This 

is many more residences in this zone. 

  So we've tried to encourage more 

the longer hours, more visitation at the left 
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end of the waterfront.  Right end, much more 

neighborhood, more residential.  The view 

corridors are extremely important.  Unlike the 

large blocks that are in the existing area, 

which comes from another era of planning, we 

have really tried hard to build as much 

porosity, get as many views, as many access 

points, not have any walls longer than a 

couple of hundred feet. 

  Much different than most of 

Washington, D.C., which are longer blocks.  

We've done this because we have, although we 

have all the ground floors animated with 

retail, we have chosen to go up to a height of 

130 feet, which is based on the heights of -- 

way of heights being determined in D.C., based 

on building on avenue widths. 

  We don't have it everywhere.  It 

steps down, especially on public places.  

There's always lower street walls.  But this 

allows us to free up more land, so that we're 

able to do the vistas through.  It gives us a 
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chance, not just vistas, but a whole host of 

open spaces, which again is another 

presentation, up to about 60 percent of the 

land area, with a major park and green space 

where there currently is parking.  

  All the buses for dinner boats get 

out of here.  They're going to be on the -- on 

Maine, and we're able to create a whole host 

of parks and ideas about public places, 

including piers that come out from a major 

park; a new city square and city pier going 

all the way out into the water; a transit 

pier; and another barge pier where the fish 

market is.  These are the two existing right 

today.   

  So this vista open spaces has led 

us to the ability with buildings to make 

places.  This is a plan from day one that has 

been about making public places.  There's at 

least a dozen of them that offer all kinds of 

activities. 

  Some operate later, some operate 
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in quieter ways.  Some are sort of more 

exuberant and more visitor-oriented, but 

constantly about public place-making is the 

way most of the buildings and the boating 

ideas have been planned together, so that in 

the end of the day, people keep coming back 

and stay longer, particularly if they live 

here. 

  All these public places are joined 

together by the glue of the wharf.  This is an 

illustrated ground floor plan of the trees, 

the cafés, the introduction of all the piers. 

 The Capitol Yacht Club will have its own 

barge and pier.  The gangplank marina will be 

reorganized so that we have this most active 

public wharf, including street cars and a 

little bit of traffic when we can. 

  I want to start just with one 

great place, the fish market.  This is down 

here today where the piers are and the barges 

that cluster.  But we've been looking at other 

markets around the world, Hamburg, San 
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Francisco, Pike Place.   

  We're looking at the way wharves 

are made, the way barges are being added more 

and more to waterfronts around the world that 

have restaurants and bars, and from that, we 

have come up with a new way of imagining an 

expanded fish market. 

  Nothing changes with the barges 

that are there or their piers.  The same 

messiness, the same crazy parking schemes, 

etcetera, except that we have a new 

intersection that's coordinated with getting 

to and from Banneker, which I'll talk about. 

  We've reversed so we can make a 

left in and out.  We've now reversed the 

traffic direction to go west.  Right now if 

you've been there, you know you can only go 

one way east, and this gets us to all parts.  

We can expand into a public market head house, 

retail pavilion.  This is an existing historic 

building. 

  So that we're able to build much 
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more onto what's there, have more choices, 

more food, more entertainment.  A new public 

square called the Market Square with a new 

market pier.  This pier will be for barges, 

but is also the way of getting to the future 

Maritime Museum, should that develop. 

  This is relative height, the 

current elevation of the barges.  This is the 

new head house building.  There actually used 

to be a head house building on this relatively 

speaking site, probably two to three times 

longer than what we're proposing. 

  We're looking at about 50 foot 

high, a public market on the ground floor, 

lofts above.  A potential two-story brewery or 

restaurant building with a great roof garden 

to enjoy the views and have drinks and 

cocktails and probably lots of weddings as 

well. 

  Maine Avenue, and then just to put 

in the relative height of where Banneker is 

today.  It's about oh, 45-50 feet above the 
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elevation of the wharf that's down at the fish 

market, just to put this into some context.   

  We want to bring some attention to 

the fact that the fish market existing is 

known to only very few people, and all those 

people that are driving into the District from 

Virginia, and the first thing that they see is 

never what's down at the bottom down here.  

  We'd like very much to look at the 

way public markets and icons of letters and 

all have been used as wayfinding.  They're 

associated with the history of Market Place.  

Also associated with historical places that 

have been around for a long time.   

  We'd like very much to see if we 

can't gain some approval, that at the top of 

our head house, which is about the height of 

the adjacent highway, this is a view of that 

condition, that we might be considered to 

allow for a market icon or an icon really 

announcing the entire public wharf of this 

place, so that we are welcoming people to 
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D.C., but we're also welcoming them to the 

waterfront and letting them know it exists. 

  We have begun studies, and they're 

not complete, of if we were at the Jefferson 

Memorial, and we were to look across, would we 

see this.  We have to make corrections to this 

section.  We're still working on getting it 

right.  There's two bridges obviously in the 

way, land, etcetera. 

  We believe that we're going to be 

able to do this, so that you do not see the 

top of this icon, and we just need to come 

back with a lot more information to 

demonstrate that.  We know there's probably 

other views we also have to consider, but we 

thought that's the most sensitive. 

  So here we are at this market and 

this great Market Square, with the new market 

pier coming out.  We see this kind of 

environment, building upon the fish markets 

today, but going into more of a marketplace 

environment. 
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  We think about well, you know, we 

do need to get to and from Banneker.  We want 

to get to 10th Street.  We want to get to the 

Mall.  We want to have people coming in and 

out, especially at lunch time, not just Mall 

people and tourists. 

  This is the proposed connection 

that we would like to make, and we did this 

based on the planning, at least, that you've 

done to date.  We know there's more going on. 

 On the left is the NCPC framework plan that 

you've done to date.  There's no official 

status.  We're aware of that. 

  But we took the connection of a 

kind of Spanish steps, that again was in this 

piece here, and we went forward and said we'd 

like to build that right down to the Market 

Square and into the either the piers or the 

future Maritime Museum and the marketplace. 

  We got a lot of feedback.  This 

actually is a plan that was based on working  

with your staff and our commission.  We've 
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since gone onto to open it more, to move a 

taller building back.  We have a 50-foot base 

which if you have time afterwards, you can 

look on the model.  

  We're proposing that the head 

house and the street walls of these buildings 

around the square be limited in height, and 

any taller building be set back.  We've 

started moving this back further, so we can 

open more of a view, and we think the Maritime 

Museum, if it ever happened, would also be 

limited in height, which rooftop would be made 

more of sails and things that you would enjoy 

to Virginia from up on this upper piece and 

the view coming down the D.C. steps. 

  So this whole connection in the 

meantime, before we have all these plans, is 

well, we can get across the intersection.  Now 

how do we get up to Banneker.  Well right now, 

if you know it, it's a big grassy knoll with a 

kind of cow path going down.  There's not even 

paving. 
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  What we'd like to do is at least 

start to consider putting a temporary stair 

up, so that people can come to and fro, and be 

able to get through a regular traffic light 

and cross when they are allowed.  We also 

thought -- so we began to look at a study, how 

people drive down Banneker today. 

  We'd like if we could add a 

sidewalk.  We might be able to get people to 

come right to our new city square at 9th 

Street, in addition to the stair here.  This 

extra line is the pedestrian and bicycle 

connection across the bridge. 

  We've been asked to look at 

options.  So we kept looking at more and more 

options, and we thought another piece is 

instead of going all the way out here, why 

can't pedestrians and bicycles and strollers 

come right down to the intersection as well as 

the stairs?  I'm not going to dwell on these. 

  We also thought in addition to th 

at, you know, we don't need a stair.  We 
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actually can do a kind of ramping garden-like 

interim environment, that could be actually 

quite fun and attractive.  It's not quite the 

ramps of San Francisco that we can do here, 

but it could be quite beautiful as a landscape 

place. 

  We also thought, since there is no 

real plan for the NCPC framework, that we 

would look at other ideas that have been 

tossed around.  One is at the end of the 10th 

Street access, there could be a museum.  We 

chose here just to put the Portrait Gallery 

footprint.  We know it's a much bigger 

building than you might do. 

  But it does show the possibility 

of a major public building at the end, should 

you choose to do anything.  We also took the 

liberty of doing another Jefferson Memorial, 

just again to give the sense of wouldn't this 

be a beautiful ending to this great access. 

  We have private buildings here.  

In fact, I was looking at the model out in the 
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lobby.  What we're doing is pretty much what 

was in that model.  It basically is a city 

fabric that relates to the water, ending in a 

beautiful vista with a building we think is 

probably also something worth your 

consideration. 

  We're trying to figure out what 

you're doing, because we'd like to move on 

with our plan.  We also thought well, another 

possibility is maybe perhaps you could just 

look directly through from a corridor, to be 

determined, and we would try to figure out how 

to change the buildings we currently have, to 

let this view through and allow you to go all 

the way through to Potomac Park. 

  All of these are possible.  We 

just need to figure out how to get these 

things working.  This is a significant change 

for us, but one probably worth thinking about 

with you. 

  I'd like to talk also a little bit 

about when you end a great view and you want 
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to announce water, you might consider doing 

something like San Francisco at the end of 

Market Street.  They chose to put a building 

and a tower, because that actually tells 

people where the waterfront is more than 

leaving the view open. 

  There's more history of wayfinding 

by putting something in the view,  as opposed 

to leaving it open for people to figure out on 

their own.   

  So we looked at some of the great 

towers of the world, San Francisco, but San 

Marco.  These are all seen from long views on 

the water.  They also mark the very important 

 places in the city fabric like San Marco.  

Even the Tate old steam vent use has now 

become an important part of the new museum. 

  So we felt like you know, what 

happens if from the mall, you were able to 

look down 10th and there was a tower at this 

point?  Well that in sections could be seen 

eventually, maybe if you did a tower to 100, 
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250 feet tall.  That was a possibility, and 

we'd like to do that. 

  Now I know that sounds maybe a 

little bizarre.  It's not for private 

occupancy we're talking about.  It's for a 

great civic work of art, a public wayfinding 

to mark the waterfront.  There is a tradition 

in this city; in fact, the New York Times 

recently published most of these, that in fact 

you have gone to taller buildings.  But 

they're all for interesting and important 

placemaking ideas, so we want some of these -- 

ask you to consider this.   

  This is the possibility at the 

end, that if we did this, we actually could 

celebrate the new town hall and the city dock. 

 This town square is the first time the 

District would actually have a town square.  

It doesn't exist in this city. 

  I know we tried it at the 

convention center and we didn't get exactly 

what we want.  We also have this is our city 
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dock.  For the first time, although not the 

first time, we will have a city dock where all 

the ships of the world can come and visit, and 

the Mayor or the President can come out and 

announce and welcome people, and we think a 

tower is a possibility. 

  The truth is our private developer 

can't even afford this.  So he's given me the 

liberty to present this idea.  How we get it 

done is another question.  So I want to just 

end with this.  We went through this very 

quickly.  I think you got the gist of the main 

ideas.   

  It's to bring this city fabric of 

the streets and blocks, respect all the 

streets that are upland, bring Maine Avenue 

and make it a great boulevard, put the heights 

that are on boulevards so that we can open up 

the poorest views, get a lot of open space.  

  But this great wharf can once 

again become a part of the city and the 

District, but in a way that many more people 
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will enjoy it than in the past.  So that's it. 

 Thank you very much. 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Thank you very 

much.  The Southwest Ecodistrict and the 

Southwest Waterfront projects obviously are 

very integral to each other, and is a terrific 

example of the public sector and the private 

sector working together very much hand in 

hand.  With that, other comments from 

Commission members? 

  MS. GREENWALD:  I just have a few 

questions.  The bike lanes that were shown, 

they're on the sidewalk?  Because you know, 

from my living in the District, I noticed that 

they're mostly on the streets.  So that didn't 

seem completely consistent. 

  MR. ECKSTUT:  This is part of the 

city's new thinking about bike lanes.  So it's 

not in the streets and leftover after the 

fact.  This is a very key thing.  So what 

we're doing is -- let me go to my second hand 

here.  So this is the curb today, and the 
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building property line is here. 

  We're going to set the building 

back, so that we can get a normal sidewalk 

with a ten foot, two-way direction bike lane, 

that yes, you do have to cross streets as they 

cross here, but you are in the sidewalk, 

protected, against the trees, and there's 

enough room also so that cars that are parked 

here are not opening the doors into the bike. 

  MS. GREENWALD:  Okay. 

  MR. ECKSTUT:  And this would go 

along the entire length, and potentially 

continue on the entire waterfront, in both 

directions.  That's the plan. 

  MS. GREENWALD:  Okay, and just my 

other comment was -- my first job in D.C. was 

along the waterfront, so I'm fairly familiar 

with the area and about the fish market for 

most D.C. residents in their time here. 

  But all of the maps that you show 

do not contain where the Metro currently 

exists, which is an access plan, and there was 
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lots of talk about where the cars would come 

from and go to. 

  MR. ECKSTUT:  Where the Metro is, 

you're saying? 

  MS. GREENWALD:  Yes, and it just 

might be helpful for future presentations to 

indicate the Waterfront Metro stop -- 

  MR. ECKSTUT:  Yes, you're 

absolutely right, because there's one station 

up here, and there's another station right in 

here.  We actually have those maps.  I chose 

to take some out, but it's so important as a 

public thing, we should put it back in. 

  MR. MAY:  Mr. Provancha. 

  MR. PROVANCHA:  It's a very 

exciting and very innovative plan.  Question. 

 With land use and residential and perhaps 

immediately adjacent to the fish market, with 

early morning activities, the smell of fresh 

fish. 

  MR. ECKSTUT:  It takes an urban 

type. 
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  MR. PROVANCHA:  Exactly.  

  MR. ECKSTUT:  It's only a small 

amount, and we thought the idea of lofts, 

there's some consideration of artists.  

They're talking to Arena Stage about their 

people who have year scholarships to live 

here.  So you're right.  It's -- 

  MR. PROVANCHA:  Having lived in 

San Francisco twice, it's nice to see some of 

the elements of that wonderful city 

incorporated, as well  as Pike Place 

incorporated into this.  The idea about cruise 

ships and large vessels coming in, do we have 

the draftage in the channel to accommodate 

larger? 

  MR. ECKSTUT:  You know, I do a lot 

of waterfronts and I know very little about 

boats, to be absolutely honest.  So we are 

told, because we do have maritime consultants 

with us, that they have met enough with the 

Army Corps and others, that with the dredging 

that seems practical, that they are able, at 
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certain times of tide, to be able to come in 

and park some of the tallest ships right on 

the city dock. 

  We know the dinner boats are doing 

fine.  That's fine.  We know that most vessels 

that are transporting people, we have the 

draft there today to do that.  There is a 

question about the really tall ships.  We 

don't have cruise ships in this plan.  That's 

not part of the project.  So that's yet 

another issue. 

  But in these marina plans are 

provisions in both clubs for what they call 

the luxury yachts, which are the 150, 200 foot 

vessels, and they are in here today at times, 

although they have very limited ability to 

service them.  So I've given you a long-winded 

answer that should be yes. 

  MR. PROVANCHA:  The idea about a 

tower is also appealing.  There's been some 

studies that many people use landmarks for 

navigation.  So something like a tower would 
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probably be -- 

  MR. ECKSTUT:  Yes, and I meant to 

be clear.  The tower idea was not just for 

people on the Mall, which we think are the 

most important, because no one knows there's a 

waterfront here, but also for people coming up 

the river.  It could be an important landmark 

for them. 

  And it's a spiritual landmark. 

It's not that they don't have the equipment. 

It's really more a sense of arriving, you 

know. 

  MR. PROVANCHA:  Really quickly on 

the waterway issue.  I believe that there was 

a proposal for a lot of this to occur, that 

there would have to be a narrowing of the 

Washington Channel, and I don't know -- 

  MR. ECKSTUT:  There's not a 

narrowing of the bulkhead.  What it is it's a 

narrowing of the channel here so that we could 

extend the docks.  This channel here is one 

that our maritime consultants are working with 
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the Army Corps, and apparently it works.  They 

can make the turns and all the things that 

they claim. 

  Now some mariners would much 

prefer a much broader, wider venues, and when 

the wind is blowing in a certain direction, 

they need certain help.  But this is 

considered safe and consistent with maritime 

standards. 

  MR. PROVANCHA:  Okay. 

  MR. MILES:  I would just possibly 

encourage staff.  I believe there was some 

movement on the House side of a transportation 

 infrastructure bill related to that, to 

possibly continue to track that.  

  MR. DOWD:  I believe the proposal 

was to narrow and shift the navigable channel 

to the south, to go out for additional 

waterfront development.   

  MR. ECKSTUT:  It was at our 

request that that was done, yes. 

  MR. MILES:  And the other thing 
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that, you know, was not mentioned, and this 

has been presented to me a number of times, is 

one of the best features in the public-private 

is I believe the city has asked for at least a 

30 percent plus affordable housing component 

to that, and I think that's something that you 

-- 

  MR. ECKSTUT:   That's my fault for 

not talking about that.  I think Elinor really 

knows more about that.  

  MS. BACON:  According to our land 

disposition agreement, 30 percent of the units 

would be affordable to people earning 30 

percent of median, half to 30 and half to 60. 

 That is the current plan.  There is 

consideration of some changes to that, but 

over and above the base of the land 

disposition agreement.   

  But the 30 percent and the 60 

percent of median, for an 160,000 square foot 

area, is definitely set.  So people making 

median currently in the District is about 
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103,000.  So 30 percent for a family of four 

it's about a little over 30, and for a family 

of four at 60 percent is little over 60.  

  We've looked at waterfronts around 

North America, and there is no level of 

affordability like this in the District, that 

we're going to be creating in the District. 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Other comments. 

  MR. DIXON:  What about the view of 

the existing residents in that area?  Is it 

going to impact in any way that might be an 

issue? 

  MR. ECKSTUT:  Well, if you live in 

an area where right now there's nothing on the 

waterfront, obviously people are going to say 

you're taking our view away.  So our main 

concerns are all the -- first of all, all the 

primary streets, like 7th and 9th, because 

many of these blocks, fi you look at them, the 

way they're laid out, there are no views 

through. 

  MR. DIXON:  Right. 
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  MR. ECKSTUT:  But these streets go 

through.  Clearly M is a very important one.  

But we felt we needed to add as many other 

views as people walk and driving along as 

possible.  Now if I'm in this condo and it's 

very tall, and right now I can look out over 

everything else and see the whole waterfront, 

obviously we are taking views away. 

  But the 130 foot, which is based 

on the width of avenue and all, is probably 

two stories more than what was thought about 

before.  So if anything up to ten stories, we 

would have the same view.  If we did six 

stories, we'd be blocking views. 

  If I live over here and I enjoy 

today looking at the monument, etcetera, we 

are definitely interrupting those views.  But 

we're doing it in the context that we really 

tried to open up as much as we can.  We are 

determined to make this feel welcoming and 

accessible. 

  But development of bringing the 



 

 

 NEAL R. GROSS 
 COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS 
 1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W. 
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C.  20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com 

 
 
 201 

city to the water edge where there's nothing 

now is definitely taking some views.  We just 

looked after what we thought are the most 

important  public places. 

  MR. HART:  I continue to have some 

reservations about the way, what you're 

characterizing as Market Square's connection 

to 10th Street.  What you've shown is really a 

drive, with parking in it, not a pedestrian 

zone.  You want to back one?  Yes.  I would 

see this Market Square as really a big 

driveway, a big roadway with perhaps sidewalks 

on either side. 

  So characterizing it as a Market 

Square doesn't sound like it's really what it 

is in the way you've designed it, and the 

connection back to the city, this is the one 

point where people from the Mall going to the 

Waterfront would probably be trying to take 

this route. 

  I'd really like to see more study 

done of how that occurs.  Granted, there is no 
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design at Banneker Park.  But I think being 

more sympathetic to the fact that this may be 

the primary pedestrian connection, when you 

look at 9th Street, 7th Street and M Street, 

those are very generous pedestrian areas.  

This one isn't, and that's my concern. 

  MR. ECKSTUT:  I respect the 

concern, and I want to try to put it into some 

context.  First of all, I hope that I've 

indicated to some of you I've met before that 

we are trying very hard to look at many more 

of the options of dealing with existing 

conditions, and what some of the possible 

final ideas might be, of blocking views, 

opening views at the end. 

  Because we've changed our work in 

the last two-three weeks a lot, just to be 

able to respond to your staff concerns, which 

are very similar, I might add.  I do want to 

talk about what we're trying to accomplish. 

  There a certain call it grittiness 

to the fish market today, and if you haven't 
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been there, you need to go see what we're 

going to be preserving and adding onto, and at 

the same time we're going to be adding a lot 

of other users of many different price points. 

  We did not want to make something 

here left and preserved, and then right next 

to it, do something that was so, I'll call it 

 gentrified, upscale, that we made all this 

look like even more of a poor cousin than it 

already is.  But that's not a good reason. 

  The real reason is that we want to 

create a market atmosphere, and I think we 

took most of our lessons from Pike Place.  The 

truth is in markets, it's the convenience.  

Just like the fish market here, it's the 

convenience of the customers when they're 

driving in.  They may never get a space.  They 

may have to go into a parking garage. 

  Everybody feels they can go 

shopping.  They can pull their car in, they 

could drop off, they could pick up the big 

bushels of crabs, etcetera, and this 
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marketplace is taken directly off of Pike 

Place which, when you go in, even though it's 

got 13 million people a year visiting, it's 

all cars and trucks, and there's hardly any 

place to walk and that's it.  That's the 

excitement. 

  We, the Pike Place square is about 

this size right here.  We've made this much 

bigger and much more generous, so you can 

actually experience the water.  But we are not 

trying to make this a great pedestrian, public 

environment that welcomes everybody to the 

water and all the parks. 

  We're trying to bring people into 

a marketplace experience, and in a 

marketplace, our retail consultants are 

telling us this is too big.  They don't want 

75 feet.  They want 40 feet, because retail 

merchants depend on being next to each other. 

 They don't want any break in the spaces. 

  So we're trying to balance this, 

and we do hope that we will have double, you 
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know, angled parking where now they're using 

back-in parking, etcetera, because we want the 

place to feel authentic and alive and real, 

and it's a jolt from the Federal Mall 

experience.  It's a totally different 

experience. 

  That's why we started looking at 

9th Street where we're going to the city 

square.  But I don't think I could ever 

satisfy one set of objectives here against 

another.  I think we're trying to find a 

balance, and as we blow this up in scale, I 

want to say we're coming back for eventually a 

Phase 2 PUD, we will have to engage many more 

of the issues you're talking about. 

  We're going to have to blow the 

scale up of this.  I'm sure there's going to 

be sidewalks at least 15 feet wide by the time 

we're done.  But it does look like it's a 

parking lot today in the drawings that we've 

presented here, and that one image of Pike 

Place of the wharf, it does look like you 
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can't tell where there's a sidewalk and where 

the roadway is.  

  I would suggest that's the magic 

of what we're trying to do.  I hate to say 

this in a Federal context, but we're trying to 

create a place that doesn't work in a way.  

That's what all of us love when we go visit 

places.  We go to places that don't work, not 

the places where people drive through, and not 

to big open spaces, because we have plenty of 

that with the Mall.  We have beautiful public 

spaces here. 

  This is the one place, planning on 

the history of what used to be here, which is 

kind of a grittiness, city, working 

waterfront, a little piece of it's left at the 

fish market, which probably is representative 

of what it was all like at one time. 

  So that's sort of the vision.  I 

respect the fact that that may not be the 

vision you all agree to, yes.  But I just 

really want to come forward and put this 
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ideas.  This is where we are at the moment. 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Ms. Tregoning. 

  MS. TREGONING:  I just wanted to 

speak to this issue for the benefit of 

Commissioner Hart.  A previous project that 

has come before the Commission includes Half 

Street, S.E., not very far from this location. 

 But it's another street that's intended to be 

a very different sort of street in the city. 

  When it's completed, it won't have 

any demarcation of specific users.  The entire 

street can be used by cars, pedestrians and 

bicyclists, and the idea is that that mix of 

use, you know, think Italian Hill town, think, 

you know, think Pike Place market.   

  But that that collision of uses is 

going to make everybody be slow, and the more 

pedestrians that there are in the way, the 

slower things will be.  One of my favorite 

experiences in Italy was sitting at a café and 

having the waiter move my table when a car 

came down the street, and then move it back 
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again. 

  You know, that we want a place 

that is different in that kind of way, and 

where we have this happy collision of 

different kinds of users, and it's not a long 

street, you know.  It's not Pennsylvania 

Avenue.  You know, we want to see this kind of 

thing flourish and in these small locations, 

we think we can get a taste of, you know, what 

that's like in Washington. 

  MR. ECKSTUT:  And we're told now 

more and more European cities, in the middle 

of the cities, they're making more pedestrian 

safety by getting rid of traffic signals, stop 

signs, and they're letting the pedestrian 

totally take over without regulating anybody, 

and it's turning out, through facts and 

analysis now, that there's much less accidents 

going on. 

  MR. DIXON:  They use cows in 

India. 

  MR. ECKSTUT:  Cows work really 
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well.  There's no question about it.  That's 

true. 

  MR. MAY:  Yes.  I just want to put 

on the record in this forum what we've said in 

several other circumstances, in reacting to 

this plan, and one is that actually can you go 

back to one of the plans that shows the 

Banneker Park?  

  I think the Park Service is 

already on record in saying that we're, you 

know, in the future we imagine that there's 

going to be some kind of -- 

  MR. ECKSTUT:  Is this okay? 

  MR. MAY:  Yes, that's fine, some 

major cultural building or monument, and a 

more refined development of Banneker Park, 

which encompasses all three of those buildings 

that surround the red dot at the right.  We 

don't imagine that it's going to be a sort of 

complete filling of that site up to some 

maximum height, as has been portrayed here. 

  That's not to say that, you know, 
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based on the information that you were working 

with, that this was not -- this was an 

unreasonable assumption. 

  But it's never been our assumption 

that it's going to be a big office block kind 

of development, and we're imagining that it's 

going to be more of a single structure, maybe 

more than one, but they're structures in a 

landscape, as opposed to a dense urban fabric 

at that point, with sort of a people view over 

the water. 

  We imagine that the views over the 

water are going to remain in some significant 

fashion, and what was originally designed 

didn't quite fill that image.  I appreciate 

the fact that you've made some steps in the 

direction of trying to open things up a bit 

more.  

  I think, you know, it's going to 

be more of an episodic kind of thing.  It's 

not going to be a broad, 180-degree kind of 

view across the water.  It can be interrupted 
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with  buildings and structures, and we can be 

looking at over-low buildings and things like 

 that. 

  But we do imagine that there 

should remain still an opportunity for a more 

significant view from that point.  It's hard 

to imagine how to develop the lower area, the 

 waterfront area, without knowing what's going 

to happen at Banneker.   

  But I can say with some relative 

certainty that whatever happens at Banneker is 

probably not going to be happening very soon, 

and your development is probably going to wind 

up happening before anything else happens at 

Banneker. 

  So in the long run, it may be, and 

maybe for a very long time, maybe 20 or 30 

years before anything significant happens on 

Banneker Park.  So we will be -- we don't want 

to be in a circumstance, I think, where you 

come to that point and are -- and have to be 

sort of be peering through small gaps.  We 
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should be having a more expansive view of the 

waterfront.   

  So that's been the general 

position of the Park Service.  Otherwise, 

everything else that we've seen, all of the 

development of the waterfront, the potential 

for some redevelopment of the National Park 

Service park land at the southern end there, I 

guess that is southern or southeastern, and 

toward the Titanic Memorial, that that's, you 

know, we're open to what can happen there in 

the future and seeing improvements there and 

so on, and of course we'd like to see Potomac 

Park more engaged in what goes on. 

  I'm not sure that that means that 

we'll be having a water taxi stop there any 

time soon, but who knows?   

  MR. ECKSTUT:  Well, we're hoping. 

  MR. MAY:  Maybe.  All right.  Well 

anyway, that's about it for us. 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Mr. Miller. 

  MR. MILLER:  Yes.  I just wanted 
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to thank you for your excellent presentation. 

 I've seen it before and I want to thank you 

for your outreach to this agency and to the 

District and to the community, and your 

willingness to make accommodations along the 

way.  This is a very exciting project that 

will have a catalytic economic development 

effect for the District and this neighborhood 

and for the region. 

  It's very exciting to see it reach 

the stage, and it will be even more exciting 

to see a groundbreaking there.  We did at the 

Council the Southwest Waterfront Plan in 2003, 

and good things, I guess, take some time.  So 

good luck. 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Ms. Tregoning. 

  MS. TREGONING:  Just very briefly. 

 A couple of additional pieces of context 

about this plan.  I know that this Commission 

is familiar with the Anacostia Waterfront 

Initiative, and you know, this is an important 

part of the implementation of that plan.   
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  It's also true that in terms  of 

our work with the Federal government, this is 

part of a very deliberate set of initiatives 

that are intended to enhance the fiscal 

stability of the District of Columbia. 

  I think most of you know that only 

40 percent of the land in the District is on 

our tax rolls.  For many years, we received a 

large payment from the Federal government, you 

know, nearer a billion dollars than not, in 

order to make up for the land that wasn't on 

our tax rolls. 

  That isn't necessarily the best 

way for either the Federal government or for 

the District to proceed, to rely on an annual 

appropriation.  So the idea is that formerly 

Federal lands all along the Anacostia would be 

transferred to the District to be developed, 

and provide a tax base that we didn't 

otherwise have. 

  We've enhanced those plans with a 

plan that was mentioned earlier today, the 
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Center City Action Agenda that describes an 

area that would be five times the size of 

downtown, that includes both the Southwest 

Waterfront, the area that we're calling the 

Capitol Riverfront, Poplar Point and other 

parts of the city, that would enable the 

downtown, which is almost fully built out, to 

continue to grow in regional market share, and 

be a lively, vital place that has daytime 

office uses but also a substantial residential 

population, real amenities, great transit and 

transportation choices, and cultural 

destinations well. 

  That this, the continuation of 

this particular project and its hopefully very 

soon groundbreaking would, you know, is an 

important part of realizing all those plans 

for the city that are very vital to our 

future.  So just a little word of context 

about that.  Thank you. 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Thank you.  

Thank you for your reappearance today and 
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continuing to take our feedback and be 

receptive to it.  Mr. Dowd, thank you very 

much.   

  Before we end, I do want to 

acknowledge Mr. Miles.  I believe this is your 

last meeting.  Mr. Miles has been with us as 

the principal designee of Representative Towns 

of Maryland, who chairs the Oversight and 

Government Reform Committee, New York, excuse 

me.  The other Towns, right, from New York. 

  We have had the benefit of Mr. 

Miles being a local resident and active in his 

community and in his neighborhood and bringing 

those personal experiences to this Commission 

as planners, everything from community gardens 

to recreational amenities and facilities, to 

the use of public transit.  We've benefitted 

from those insights. 

  He would be succeeded by Howie 

Denis, who will be the senior counsel to 

Representative Issa of California, who will be 

-- he's chair-elect of the House Committee on 
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Oversight and Government Reform.  He also is a 

local resident.  He is formerly on the staff 

of Congressman Tom Davis from Northern 

Virginia. 

  So we will have good continuation 

of having someone who knows the area, the 

National Capital Region, joining us.  Mr. 

Denis was here for a good portion of this 

morning's meeting.  He has since slipped out, 

so I wanted to introduce him.  But you will 

get to know him and Mr. Miles has given him 

the thumbs up. 

  So we thank you for your service, 

and do hope we'll continue seeing you from 

time to time.  With that, anything else to 

come before the Commission? 

  (No response.) 

  CHAIRMAN BRYANT:  Hearing none, we 

are adjourned. 

  (Whereupon, at 3:50 p.m., the 

meeting was adjourned.) 


